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The end of fiscal 2004 marked 153 consecutive months of positive 
comparable store sales growth.

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

425 677 1,015 1,412 1,886
2,498

3,501

4,709
5,886

7,225

8,569

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
(in billions)

International

United States

Starbucks Corporation

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

10%
8%

6%5%

9%

6%5%5%
7%

9%9%

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

$0.1
$0.3

$0.5 $0.5
$0.8

$1.0 $1.1
$1.4

$1.7

$2.5

$2.1

FISCAL 2004 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

• Attained record net revenues and net earnings

• Marked first full year of double-digit comparable 
store sales increase in more than a decade

• Opened a record 1,344 net locations worldwide

• Posted full year profitability for Starbucks
International Operations, both including and 
excluding Canada

• Opened first store in France 

• Expanded International infrastructure with 
the opening of a second distribution center for 
the Asia Pacific region, located in Hong Kong

• Continued product innovation with new
Frappuccino® beverages, reduced fat pastries 
and high-quality seasonal offerings

• Reached approximately $1 billion in total 
life-to-date activations and reloads on
Starbucks Cards

• Opened our Farmer Support Center in Costa 
Rica to support existing and potential Starbucks 
Coffee suppliers and their communities

• Launched industry-leading Coffee and Farmer 
Equity (C.A.F.E.) Practices, strengthening the 
requirements for third party verification and 
economic transparency, and establishing more 
specific social and environmental indicators

• Co-produced Ray Charles’ Genius Loves
Company, which became a multiplatinum
album with nearly 30 percent of total album 
sales from Starbucks stores

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE 
PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT 
OF 1995
Certain statements herein, including anticipated store openings, 
trends in or expectations regarding Starbucks Corporation’s revenue 
and net earnings growth, comparable store sales growth, cash fl ow 
requirements and capital expenditures, all constitute “ forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are based on 
currently available operating, fi nancial and competitive information 
and are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Actual future results 
and trends may differ materially depending on a variety of factors, 
including, but not limited to, coffee, dairy and other raw materials 
prices and availability; successful execution of internal performance 
and expansion plans; fl uctuations in United States and international 
economies and currencies; ramifi cations from the war on terrorism, or 
other international events or developments; the impact of competitors’ 
initiatives; the effect of legal proceedings; and other risks detailed 
herein and in Starbucks Corporation’s other fi lings with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. Please also see “Certain Additional Risks 
and Uncertainties” in the Starbucks Annual report on Form 10-K for 
the fi scal year ended October 3, 2004.

A forward-looking statement is neither a prediction nor a guarantee 
of future events or circumstances, and those future events or 
circumstances may not occur. Users should not place undue reliance 
on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date 
of this report. Starbucks Corporation is under no obligation to 
update or alter any forward-looking statements, whether as a result 
of new information, future events or otherwise.

BUSINESS
Starbucks Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, “Starbucks” 
or the “Company”), purchases and roasts high-quality whole 
bean coffees and sells them, along with fresh, rich-brewed 
coffees, Italian-style espresso beverages, cold blended beverages, 
a variety of complementary food items, coffee-related accessories 

and equipment, a selection of premium teas and a line of 
compact discs, primarily through Company-operated retail 
stores. Starbucks also sells coffee and tea products through 
other channels, and through certain of its equity investees 
Starbucks produces and sells bottled Frappuccino® and Starbucks 
DoubleShot® coffee drinks and a line of superpremium ice 
creams. These nonretail channels are collectively known as 
“Specialty Operations.” The Company’s objective is to establish 
Starbucks as the most recognized and respected brand in the 
world. To achieve this goal, the Company plans to continue rapid 
expansion of its retail operations, to grow its Specialty Operations 
and to selectively pursue other opportunities to leverage the 
Starbucks brand through the introduction of new products and 
the development of new channels of distribution. 

The Company has two operating segments, United States and 
International, each of which includes Company-operated retail 
stores and Specialty Operations.

Company-operated Retail Stores  
The Company’s retail goal is to become the leading retailer 
and brand of coffee in each of its target markets by selling the 
fi nest quality coffee and related products and by providing 
each customer a unique Starbucks Experience. This third place 
experience, after home and work, is built upon superior customer 
service as well as clean and well-maintained Company-operated 
retail stores that refl ect the personalities of the communities in 
which they operate, thereby building a high degree of customer 
loyalty. Starbucks strategy for expanding its retail business is 
to increase its market share in existing markets primarily by 
opening additional stores and to open stores in new markets 
where the opportunity exists to become the leading specialty 
coffee retailer. In support of this strategy, Starbucks opened 
634 new Company-operated stores during the fi scal year ended 
October 3, 2004 (“fi scal 2004”). Company-operated retail stores 
accounted for 84% of total net revenues during fi scal 2004.

The following table summarizes total Company-operated retail store data for the periods indicated:

 Net stores opened during
                       the fi scal year ended                                              Stores open as of                     
  Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003  

  (53 Wks) (52 Wks) Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003

United States 514 506 4,293 3,779
International:
 United Kingdom 49 51 422 373
 Canada 56 29 372 316
 Thailand 11 9 49 38
 Australia  4 7 44 40
 Singapore  – 3 35 35

Total International 120 99 922 802
Total Company-operated  634 605 5,215 4,581

Starbucks retail stores are typically located in high-traffi c, 
high-visibility locations. Because the Company can vary the 
size and format, its stores are located in or near a variety of 
settings, including downtown and suburban retail centers, 
offi ce buildings and university campuses. While the Company 
selectively locates stores in shopping malls, it focuses on locations 
that provide convenient access for pedestrians and drivers. With 
the fl exibility in store size and format, the Company also locates 
retail stores in select rural and off-highway locations to serve a 
broader array of customers outside major metropolitan markets 
and further expand brand awareness. To provide a greater 
degree of access and convenience for nonpedestrian customers, 
the Company has increased focus on drive-thru retail stores. At 
the end of fi scal 2004, the Company had approximately 700 
Company-operated drive-thru locations.

All Starbucks stores offer a choice of regular and decaffeinated 
coffee beverages, a broad selection of Italian-style espresso 
beverages, cold blended beverages, iced shaken refreshment 
beverages and a selection of teas and distinctively packaged 
roasted whole bean coffees. Starbucks stores also offer a 
selection of fresh pastries and other food items, sodas, juices, 
coffee-making equipment and accessories, a selection of 
compact discs, games and seasonal novelty items. Each 
Starbucks store varies its product mix depending upon the size 
of the store and its location. Larger stores carry a broad 
selection of the Company’s whole bean coffees in various sizes 
and types of packaging, as well as an assortment of coffee and 
espresso-making equipment and accessories such as coffee 
grinders, coffee fi lters, storage containers, travel tumblers and 
mugs. Smaller Starbucks stores and kiosks typically sell a full 
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line of coffee beverages, a limited selection of whole bean 
coffees and a few accessories such as travel tumblers and logo 
mugs. In the United States and in International markets, 
approximately 2,100 stores and 500 stores, respectively, carry a 
selection of grab-and-go sandwiches and salads. During fi scal 
2004, the Company’s retail sales mix by product type was 
77% beverages, 14% food items, 5% whole bean coffees and 
4% coffee-making equipment and other merchandise.

In fi scal 2004, the Company introduced the Starbucks Hear 
Music™ Coffeehouse, a fi rst-of-its-kind music store in Santa 
Monica, California. This Company-operated retail location 
combines the Starbucks coffeehouse experience with an 
innovative new retail environment for customers to discover, 
acquire and enjoy music. The Hear Music Coffeehouse gives 
customers a hands-on guide to music discovery with its 
interactive listening bar, and allows customers access to CD 
burning technology to create personalized CDs from a digital 
library of music. Currently, Starbucks is testing the CD burning 
technology through its Hear Music™ media bars in select 
Starbucks Company-operated retail stores.

Specialty Operations
The Company’s Specialty Operations strive to develop the 
Starbucks brand outside the Company-operated retail store 
environment through a number of channels. Starbucks strategy 
is to reach customers where they work, travel, shop and dine 
by establishing relationships with prominent third parties 
that share the Company’s values and commitment to quality. 
These relationships take various forms, including licensing 
arrangements, foodservice accounts and other initiatives related 
to the Company’s core businesses. In certain situations, 

Starbucks has an equity ownership interest in licensee operations. 
During fi scal 2004, specialty revenues (which include royalties 
and fees from licensees, as well as product sales derived from 
Specialty Operations) accounted for 16% of total net revenues.

Licensing 
Although the Company does not generally relinquish operational 
control of its retail stores in the United States, in situations in 
which a master concessionaire or another company controls 
or can provide improved access to desirable retail space, the 
Company licenses its operations. As part of these arrangements, 
Starbucks receives license fees and royalties and sells coffee and 
related products for resale in licensed locations. Employees 
working in licensed retail locations must follow Starbucks 
detailed store operating procedures and attend training classes 
similar to those given to Company-operated store managers 
and employees.

During fi scal 2004, Starbucks opened 417 licensed retail stores 
in the United States. As of October 3, 2004, the Company had 
1,839 licensed stores in the United States. Product sales to and 
royalty and license fees from these stores accounted for 24% of 
specialty revenues in fi scal 2004. 

The Company’s International licensed retail stores are operated 
through a number of licensing arrangements, primarily with 
prominent retailers. During fi scal 2004, Starbucks expanded 
its international presence by opening 293 new International 
licensed stores, including the fi rst stores in France and Cyprus. 
At fi scal year end 2004, the Company’s International operating 
segment had a total of 1,515 licensed retail stores categorized by 
region and located as follows:

 Asia Pacifi c Europe/Middle East/Africa Americas

 Japan 534 Germany 35 Canada 66
 China 152 Saudi Arabia 32 Hawaii 45
 Taiwan 136 United Arab Emirates 31 Mexico 32
 South Korea 102 Spain 27 Chile 9
 Philippines 70 Kuwait 27 Puerto Rico 6
 Malaysia 52 Greece 25 Peru 3
 New Zealand 36 Switzerland 18
 Indonesia 24 Turkey 15
   Lebanon 10
   Austria 8
   Qatar 6
   Bahrain 5
   France 4
   Oman 3
   Cyprus 2
 Total 1,106  248  161
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Product sales to and royalty and license fee revenues from 
International licensed retail stores accounted for 15% of specialty 
revenues in fi scal 2004. In total, worldwide retail store licensing 
accounted for 39% of specialty revenues in fi scal 2004.

In fi scal 2004, the Company expanded its licensing 
relationship with Kraft Foods, Inc. (“Kraft”) to include 
a larger selection of Starbucks® whole bean and ground 
coffees, as well as Seattle’s Best Coffee® and Torrefazione 
Italia® branded coffees and a selection of premium Tazo® 

teas, in grocery and warehouse club stores throughout the 
United States. Kraft manages all distribution, marketing, 
advertising and promotion and pays a royalty to Starbucks. 
By the end of fi scal 2004, the Company’s coffees and teas 
were available in approximately 20,000 grocery and warehouse 
club stores: 19,000 in the United States and 1,000 in 
International markets. Revenues from this category comprised 
27% of specialty revenues in fi scal 2004.

The Company has licensed the rights to produce and distribute 
Starbucks branded products to two partnerships in which the 
Company holds a 50% equity interest: The North American 
Coffee Partnership with the Pepsi-Cola Company develops and 
distributes bottled Frappuccino® and Starbucks DoubleShot® 
coffee drinks; and the Starbucks Ice Cream Partnership with 
Dreyer’s Grand Ice Cream, Inc., develops and distributes 
superpremium ice creams. In fi scal 2004, the Company entered 
into an agreement with Jim Beam Brands Co., a unit of Fortune 
Brands, Inc., to develop, manufacture and market a Starbucks-
branded premium coffee liqueur product in the United States. 
The Company conducted tests of this product in two U.S. 
markets in the fi scal fourth quarter and expects to introduce 
the product nationally during the fi scal second quarter of 
2005 in retail locations licensed to sell distilled spirits, such 
as restaurants, bars and retail outlets where premium distilled 
spirits are sold. The Company will not sell the liqueur product 
in its Company-operated or licensed retail stores. The associated 
revenues from this category accounted for 1% of specialty 
revenues in fi scal 2004.

Foodservice Accounts
The Company sells whole bean and ground coffees, including 
the Starbucks, Seattle’s Best Coffee and Torrefazione Italia 
brands, as well as a selection of premium Tazo teas, to 

institutional foodservice companies that service business, 
industry, education and healthcare accounts, offi ce coffee 
distributors, hotels, restaurants, airlines and other retailers. 
Beginning in fi scal 2003, the Company transitioned the majority 
of its U.S. foodservice accounts to SYSCO Corporation’s 
national broadline distribution network and aligned foodservice 
sales, customer service and support resources with those of 
SYSCO Corporation. This alliance greatly improved customer 
service levels and is expected to continue to generate new 
foodservice accounts over the next several years. Starbucks and 
Seattle’s Best Coffee are the only superpremium national-brand 
coffees actively promoted by SYSCO Corporation. 

The Company’s total worldwide foodservice operations had 
approximately 13,700 foodservice accounts at fi scal year end 
2004, and revenues from these accounts comprised 31% of total 
specialty revenues.

Other Initiatives
The Company maintains a website at Starbucks.com where 
customers may purchase, register or reload Starbucks stored 
value cards, as well as apply for the Starbucks Card Duetto™ 
Visa® (the “Duetto Card”), issued through the Company’s 
agreement with Bank One Corporation and Visa. The Duetto 

Card is a fi rst-of-its-kind card, combining the functionality
of a credit card with the convenience of a reloadable 
Starbucks Card. Additionally, the website contains information 
about the Company’s coffee products, brewing equipment and 
store locations. 

In fi scal 2004, the Company entered into a strategic marketing 
alliance with XM Satellite Radio related to the debut of the 
24-hour Starbucks Hear Music™ channel 75. This channel is 
available to all XM Satellite Radio subscribers, and Starbucks 
customers will be able to enjoy the same programming when it 
is launched in more than 4,000 Company-operated locations in 
the United States during fi scal 2005. Collectively, the operations 
of these other initiatives accounted for 2% of specialty revenues 
in fi scal 2004.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
In thousands, except earnings per share and store operating data

The following selected fi nancial data have been derived from the consolidated fi nancial statements of Starbucks Corporation (the 
“Company”). The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations,” the section “Certain Additional Risks and Uncertainties” in the Company’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K and the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements and notes thereto.
 Oct 3, Sept 28, Sept 29, Sept 30, Oct 1,
 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
As of and for the fiscal year ended (1) (53 Wks) (52 Wks) (52 Wks) (52 Wks) (52 Wks)

RESULTS  OF OPERATIONS DATA
Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail $ 4,457,378 $ 3,449,624 $ 2,792,904 $ 2,229,594 $ 1,823,607
 Specialty:
  Licensing  565,798  409,551  311,932  240,665  189,411
  Foodservice and other  271,071  216,347  184,072  178,721  164,596
 Total specialty  836,869  625,898  496,004  419,386  354,007
Total net revenues  5,294,247  4,075,522  3,288,908  2,648,980  2,177,614

Operating income  610,117  424,713  316,338  280,219  212,190
Internet-related investment losses (2)  – –  –   2,940  58,792
Gain on sale of investment (3)  –  –  13,361  – –
Net earnings  $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686 $ 180,335 $ 94,502
Net earnings per common share – diluted (4) $ 0.95 $ 0.67 $ 0.54 $ 0.46 $ 0.24
Cash dividends per share  –  –  –  –  –

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Working capital  $ 585,505 $ 315,326 $ 310,048 $ 148,661 $ 146,568
Total assets   3,318,957  2,729,746  2,214,392  1,783,470  1,435,026
Long-term debt (including current portion)  4,353  5,076  5,786  6,483  7,168
Shareholders’ equity  $ 2,486,755 $ 2,082,427 $ 1,723,189 $ 1,374,865 $ 1,148,212

STORE OPERATING DATA 
Percentage change in comparable store sales (5)

 United States  11%  9%  7%  5%  9%
 International  6%  7%  1%  3%  12%
 Consolidated  10%  8%  6%  5%  9%

Stores opened during the year: (6) (7)

 United States
  Company-operated stores  514  506  503  498  388
  Licensed stores  417  315  264  268  342
 International
  Company-operated stores  120  99  113  151  103
  Licensed stores  293  281  297  291  170
Total  1,344  1,201  1,177  1,208  1,003
Stores open at year-end: (7)

 United States(8)

  Company-operated stores  4,293  3,779  3,209  2,706  2,208
  Licensed stores  1,839  1,422  1,033  769  501
 International
  Company-operated stores  922  802  703  590  439
  Licensed stores  1,515  1,222  941  644  353
Total  8,569  7,225  5,886  4,709  3,501

(1) The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30.  
(2) During fiscal 2001 and 2000, the Company recognized losses of $2.9 million and $58.8 million, respectively, for impairments of Internet-related 

investments determined to be other than temporary.
(3) On October 10, 2001, the Company sold 30,000 of its shares of Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. at approximately $495 per share, net of related costs, which 

resulted in a gain of $13.4 million.
(4) Earnings per share data for fiscal years presented above have been restated to reflect the two-for-one stock split in fiscal 2001.
(5) Includes only Starbucks Company-operated retail stores open 13 months or longer. Comparable store sales percentage for fiscal 2004 excludes the extra 

sales week.
(6) Store openings are reported net of closures.
(7) International store information has been adjusted for the 100% acquisition of the Singapore operations by reclassifying historical information from Licensed 

stores to Company-operated stores. 
(8) United States stores open at fiscal 2003 year end include 43 Seattle’s Best Coffee (“SBC”) and 21 Torrefazione Italia Company-operated stores and 74 SBC 

franchised stores.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS 
OF OPERATIONS 

General
Starbucks Corporation’s fi scal year ends on the Sunday closest 
to September 30. The fi scal year ended on October 3, 2004, 
included 53 weeks, with the 53rd week falling in the fi scal 
fourth quarter. Fiscal years 2003 and 2002 each had 52 weeks. 
Fiscal year 2005 will have 52 weeks. 

Management Overview
During the fi scal year ended October 3, 2004, all areas of 
Starbucks business, from U.S. and international Company-
operated retail operations to the Company’s specialty businesses, 
delivered strong fi nancial performance, and innovation was 
prevalent throughout the Company’s operations. Starbucks 
believes the Company’s ability to achieve the balance between 
growing the core business and building the foundation for 
future growth is the key to increasing shareholder value. 
Starbucks fi scal 2004 performance provides a strong example of 
the Company’s commitment to achieve this balance. 

Historically, the primary driver of the Company’s revenue growth 
has been the opening of new retail stores, both Company-
operated and licensed, in pursuit of the Company’s objective to 
establish Starbucks as the most recognized and respected brand 
in the world. With a presence today in more than 30 countries, 
management believes that the Company’s long-term goal of 
operating 15,000 Starbucks retail locations throughout the 
United States and at least 15,000 stores in International markets 
is achievable. 

In addition to opening new retail stores, Starbucks is targeting 
to increase revenues generated at new and existing Company-
operated stores by attracting new customers and increasing 
the frequency of visits by current customers. The strategy is 
to increase fi rst year average store sales and comparable store 
sales by continuously improving the level of customer service, 
maintaining a steady stream of product innovation and 
improving the speed of service through training, technology and 
process improvement. For U.S. Company-operated stores opened 
in fi scal 2004, fi rst year sales volumes are currently estimated at 
greater than $800,000 as a result of these efforts. Comparable 
store sales for Company-operated markets increased by 10%, 
making fi scal 2004 the 13th consecutive year with comparable 
store sales growth of 5% or greater. 

In licensed retail operations, Starbucks shares operating and 
store development experience to help licensees improve the 
profi tability of existing stores and build new stores, which 
generate additional royalty income and product sales. The 
Company’s strategy is to selectively increase its equity stake as 
International markets develop. 

The combination of more retail stores, higher revenues from 
existing stores, and growth in other business channels in 
both the United States and International operating segments 
resulted in a 29.9% increase in total net revenues for the 53 
weeks of fi scal 2004, compared to the 52 weeks of fi scal 2003. 
Excluding the impact of the extra sales week in fi scal 2004, 
total net revenues increased 27.3%. Both of these revenue 
growth measures were above the Company’s three to fi ve year 
target of approximately 20%. 

Since additional retail stores can leverage existing support 
organizations and facilities, the Company’s infrastructure can 
be expanded more slowly than the rate of revenue growth 
and generate margin improvement. In fi scal 2004, operating 
income as a percentage of total net revenues increased to 11.5% 
from 10.4% in fi scal 2003, and net earnings increased by 
46.0%, compared to fi scal 2003. These results demonstrated 
the Company’s ability to improve operating margin despite 
pressures from rising dairy and green coffee commodity costs 
throughout the fi scal year. The Company’s International 
operations delivered a full year of positive operating results, 
primarily due to leverage gained on most operating expenses 
distributed over an expanded revenue base. In recent fi scal 
years, the Company made substantial infrastructure investments 
in corporate and regional support facilities and personnel, as 
well as established more effi cient distribution networks. Such 
investments were necessary to support the Company’s planned 
international expansion, which is now realizing substantial 
benefi t from this foundation.

Management believes that comparable store sales growth of 
the level acheived during fi scal 2004 is not sustainable over 
the long term. However, management believes that new store 
development opportunities on a global basis are suffi cient for the 
Company to maintain a high level of unit growth and that the 
execution of the current retail operating strategy can continue to 
increase fi rst year average store sales and comparable store sales. 
These revenue growth opportunities, coupled with continuous 
focus on controlling both operating and capital costs, should 
allow Starbucks to continue to modestly improve margins and 
achieve annual revenue growth of approximately 20% and 
annual earnings per share growth of 20%–25% for the next 
three to fi ve years.

Acquisitions
In July 2004, Starbucks acquired 100% of its licensed 
operations in Singapore and acquired 49.9% of its licensed 
operations in Malaysia, for a combined total of approximately 
$12.1 million. Previously, the Company did not have any 
equity ownership interests in these entities. The results of 
operations for Singapore are included in the accompanying 
consolidated fi nancial statements from the date of acquisition. 
For its investment in Malaysia, management applied the 
equity method of accounting from the date of acquisition, 
since the Company is able to exert signifi cant infl uence over 
the investee’s operating and fi nancial policies. 

In July 2003, the Company acquired Seattle Coffee Company 
(“SCC”), which includes the Seattle’s Best Coffee® and 
Torrefazione Italia® brands, from AFC Enterprises, Inc. for 
$70 million in cash. The results of operations of SCC are 
included in the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements 
from the date of acquisition. 

During fi scal 2003, Starbucks increased its equity ownership to 
50% of its International licensed operations in Austria, Shanghai, 
Spain, Switzerland and Taiwan, which enabled the Company 
to exert signifi cant infl uence over their operating and fi nancial 
policies. For these operations, the Company refl ected a change in 
accounting method during fi scal 2003, from the cost method to 
the equity method, in the consolidated fi nancial statements. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS – FISCAL 2004 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2003
The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to total net revenues, unless otherwise indicated, of certain items included 
in the Company’s consolidated statements of earnings:

 Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Fiscal year ended (53 Wks) (52 Wks) (52 Wks)
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS DATA
Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail 84.2% 84.6% 84.9%
 Specialty:
  Licensing 10.7 10.1 9.5
  Foodservice and other 5.1 5.3 5.6
 Total specialty 15.8 15.4 15.1
Total net revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0

Cost of sales including occupancy costs 41.5 41.4 41.0
Store operating expenses (1) 40.2 40.0  39.7 
Other operating expenses (2) 20.5 22.6 21.4
Depreciation and amortization expenses 5.3 5.8 6.3
General and administrative expenses 5.7 6.0 7.1

Income from equity investees 1.1 0.9 1.0
  Operating income 11.5 10.4 9.6

Interest and other income, net 0.3 0.3 0.3
Gain on sale of investment 0.0 0.0 0.4
Earnings before income taxes 11.8 10.7 10.3
Income taxes 4.4 4.1 3.8
  Net earnings 7.4% 6.6% 6.5%

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operated retail revenues.
(2) Shown as a percentage of related total specialty revenues.

Consolidated Results of Operations
Net revenues for the fi scal year ended 2004 increased 29.9% to 
$5.3 billion from $4.1 billion for the 52-week period of fi scal 
2003. Net revenues increased 27.3% when calculated on a 
comparative 52-week basis for both fi scal 2004 and 2003. 
During the fi scal year ended 2004, Starbucks derived 84% of 
total net revenues from its Company-operated retail stores. 
Company-operated retail revenues increased 29.2% to $4.5 
billion for the fi scal year ended 2004, from $3.4 billion for the 
52-week period of fi scal 2003. Company-operated retail revenues 
increased 26.7% when calculated on a comparative 52-week 
basis for both fi scal 2004 and 2003. This increase was primarily 
due to the opening of 634 new Company-operated retail stores 
during the previous 12 months and comparable store sales growth 
of 10%. The increase in comparable store sales was due to 
a 9% increase in the number of customer transactions and a 
1% increase in the average value per transaction. Comparable 
store sales growth percentages were calculated excluding the 
extra week of fi scal 2004. Management believes increased 
customer traffi c continues to be driven by new product 
innovation, continued popularity of core products, a high level of 
customer satisfaction and improved speed of service through 
enhanced technology, training and execution at retail stores.

The Company derived the remaining 16% of total net revenues 
from its Specialty Operations. Specialty revenues, which include 
licensing revenues and foodservice and other revenues, increased 
33.7% to $837 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, from 
$626 million for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. Excluding 
the impact of the extra sales week in fi scal 2004, total specialty 
revenues increased 31.0% to $820 million.

Licensing revenues, which are derived from retail store licensing 
arrangements, grocery and warehouse club licensing, and certain 
other branded-product licensed operations, increased 38.2% to 
$566 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, from $410 million 
for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. The increase was due to 
higher product sales and royalty revenues from the addition of 
710 new licensed retail stores during the previous 12 months 
and growth in the grocery and warehouse club businesses. The 

growth in the grocery and warehouse club businesses was a result 
of expanded agreements with Kraft Foods, Inc., including the 
addition of six new Starbucks coffees along with a selection of 
Tazo® teas and the acquisition of Seattle Coffee Company in the 
fourth quarter of fi scal 2003. 

Foodservice and other revenues increased 25.3% to $271 
million for the fi scal year ended 2004, from $216 million for 
the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. The increase was primarily 
attributable to the growth in new and existing foodservice 
accounts, which benefi ted from the July 2003 acquisition of 
Seattle Coffee Company.

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs increased to 41.5% 
of total net revenues in fi scal 2004, from 41.4% in fi scal 2003. 
The increase was primarily due to higher dairy and green 
coffee commodity costs, partially offset by leverage gained on 
occupancy costs, which are primarily fi xed expenses.

Store operating expenses as a percentage of Company-operated 
retail revenues increased to 40.2% in fi scal 2004, from 40.0% 
in fi scal 2003, primarily due to higher marketing expenditures 
for holiday and new product promotions, as well as increased 
costs to maintain retail stores and equipment due to sustained 
high traffi c levels.

Other operating expenses (expenses associated with the 
Company’s Specialty Operations) decreased to 20.5% of 
specialty revenues in fi scal 2004, compared to 22.6% in fi scal 
2003. The decrease was primarily due to leverage gained on 
payroll-related expenditures distributed over an expanded 
revenue base.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $280 
million in fi scal 2004, from $238 million in fi scal 2003. The
increase was primarily due to a net increase of 634 new 
Company-operated retail stores during the previous 12 months 
and higher depreciation expenses associated with shortened 
estimated useful lives of equipment deployed in the Company’s 
foodservice operations. As a percentage of total net revenues, 
depreciation and amortization decreased to 5.3% for the 53 
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Operating Segments
Segment information is prepared on the same basis that the Company’s management reviews fi nancial information for operational 
decision-making purposes.

The following tables summarize the Company’s results of operations by segment for fi scal 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

  % of  % of  % of 
  United States  International Unallocated Total Net
53 weeks ended October 3, 2004 United States Revenue International Revenue Corporate Revenue Consolidated
Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail $ 3,800,367 84.6% $ 657,011 81.8% $ –    – % $ 4,457,378
 Specialty:
  Licensing  436,981 9.7  128,817 16.0  – –  565,798
  Foodservice and other  253,502 5.7  17,569 2.2  – –  271,071
 Total specialty  690,483 15.4  146,386 18.2  – –  836,869
Total net revenues  4,490,850 100.0  803,397 100.0  – –  5,294,247

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs  1,789,502 39.8  409,152 50.9  – –  2,198,654
Store operating expenses  1,546,871 40.7 (1)  243,297 37.0 (1)  – –  1,790,168
Other operating expenses  144,853 21.0 (2)  26,795 18.3 (2)  – –  171,648
Depreciation and amortization expenses  201,703 4.5  45,783 5.7  32,538 0.6  280,024
General and administrative expenses  80,221 1.8  48,206 6.0  175,866 3.3  304,293

Income from equity investees  37,453 0.8  23,204 2.9  – –  60,657
 Operating income/(loss) $ 765,153 17.0% $ 53,368 6.6% $ (208,404)  (3.9)% $ 610,117

   % of  % of  % of 
  United States  International Unallocated Total Net
52 weeks ended September 28, 2003 United States Revenue International Revenue Corporate Revenue Consolidated

Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail $ 2,965,618 85.4% $ 484,006 80.3% $ –     – % $ 3,449,624
 Specialty:
  Licensing  301,175 8.7  108,376 18.0  – –  409,551
  Foodservice and other  205,659 5.9  10,688 1.7  – –  216,347
 Total specialty  506,834 14.6  119,064 19.7  – –  625,898
Total net revenues  3,472,452 100.0  603,070 100.0  – –  4,075,522

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs  1,363,267 39.3  322,661 53.5  – –  1,685,928
Store operating expenses  1,199,020 40.4 (1)  180,554 37.3 (1)  – –  1,379,574
Other operating expenses  119,960 23.7 (2)  21,386 18.0 (2)  – –  141,346
Depreciation and amortization expenses  167,138 4.8  38,563 6.4  32,106 0.8  237,807
General and administrative expenses  45,007 1.3  44,352 7.4  155,191 3.8  244,550

Income from equity investees  28,484 0.8  9,912 1.6  – –  38,396
 Operating income/(loss) $ 606,544 17.5% $ 5,466 0.9% $ (187,297)  (4.6)% $ 424,713

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operated retail revenues.
(2) Shown as a percentage of related total specialty revenues.

weeks ended October 3, 2004, from 5.8% for the corresponding 
52-week fi scal 2003 period, primarily due to the leverage of 
fi xed depreciation expenses from the extra sales week in 2004.

General and administrative expenses increased to $304 million in 
fi scal 2004, compared to $245 million in fi scal 2003, primarily due 
to higher payroll-related expenditures. As a percentage of total net 
revenues, general and administrative expenses decreased to 5.7% 
for the 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004, from 6.0% for the 
52 weeks ended September 28, 2003.

Operating income increased 43.7% to $610 million in fi scal 
2004, from $425 million in fi scal 2003. The operating margin 
increased to 11.5% of total net revenues in fi scal 2004, compared 
to 10.4% in fi scal 2003, primarily due to leverage gained 
on most fi xed operating costs distributed over an expanded 
revenue base, partially offset by higher dairy and green coffee 
commodity costs.

Income from equity investees was $61 million in fi scal 2004, 
compared to $38 million in fi scal 2003. The increase was 

primarily due to volume-driven operating results for The 
North American Coffee Partnership, which produces bottled 
Frappuccino® and Starbucks DoubleShot® coffee drinks, 
and improved profi tability of Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. 
(“Starbucks Japan”). The July 2003 increase in the Company’s 
ownership interest from 5% to 50% in the Taiwan and Shanghai 
licensed operations also contributed to the growth.

Net interest and other income, which primarily consists of 
interest income, increased to $14 million in fi scal 2004, from 
$12 million in fi scal 2003. The growth was a result of interest 
income earned on higher cash and liquid investment balances 
during fi scal 2004, compared to the prior year.

Income taxes for the 53 weeks ended October 3, 2004, resulted 
in an effective tax rate of 37.2%, compared to 38.5% in fi scal 
2003. The lower effective tax rate was primarily due to improved 
operating results as fewer nondeductible losses were generated 
from international markets, which are in various phases 
of development.
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United States
The Company’s United States operations (“United States”) 
represent 85% of Company-operated retail revenues, 83% of 
total specialty revenues and 85% of total net revenues. United 
States operations sell coffee and other beverages, whole bean 
coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment and 
merchandise primarily through Company-operated retail stores. 
Specialty Operations within the United States include licensed 
retail stores and other licensing operations, foodservice accounts 
and other initiatives related to the Company’s core businesses.

United States total net revenues increased by $1.0 billion, or 
29.3%, to $4.5 billion for the fi scal year ended 2004, compared 
to $3.5 billion for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. Excluding 
the impact of the extra sales week in fi scal 2004, United States 
total net revenues increased 26.8% to $4.4 billion. United States 
Company-operated retail revenues increased by $835 million, or 
28.1%, to $3.8 billion for the fi scal year ended 2004, compared 
to $3.0 billion for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003, primarily 
due to the opening of 514 new Company-operated retail stores 
during the previous 12 months and comparable store sales 
growth of 11%. The increase in comparable store sales was due 
to a 10% increase in the number of customer transactions and a 
1% increase in the average value per transaction. Management 
believes increased customer traffi c continues to be driven by 
new product innovation, continued popularity of core products, 
a high level of customer satisfaction and improved speed of 
service through enhanced technology, training and execution 
at retail stores. Excluding the impact of the extra sales week in 
fi scal 2004, United States Company-operated retail revenues 
increased 25.7% to $3.7 billion.

Total United States specialty revenues increased $184 million, 
or 36.2%, to $690 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, 
compared to $507 million in the 52-week period of fi scal 
2003. Excluding the impact of the extra sales week in fi scal 
2004, United States specialty revenues increased 33.4% to 
$676 million. United States licensing revenues increased 
$136 million, or 45.1%, to $437 million, compared to $301 
million for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. The increase 
was primarily due to volume-driven growth in the grocery and 
warehouse club businesses as a result of expanded agreements 
with Kraft Foods, Inc., including the addition of six new 
Starbucks coffees along with a selection of Tazo® teas. In 
addition, product sales and royalty revenues increased as a 
result of opening 417 new licensed retail stores during the 
previous 12 months. Foodservice and other revenues increased 
$48 million, or 23.3%, to $254 million from $206 million 
in fi scal 2003, due to both the addition of new and existing 
Starbucks and Seattle Coffee Company foodservice accounts.

United States operating income increased by 26.1% to $765 
million for the fi scal year ended 2004, from $607 million for 
the fi scal year ended 2003. Operating margin decreased to 
17.0% of related revenues from 17.5% in the 52-week period 
of fi scal 2003, primarily due to higher dairy and green coffee 
commodity costs, as well as higher payroll-related expenditures 
to support the Company’s accelerated retail store growth. 
These increases were partially offset by leverage gained on fi xed 
occupancy costs distributed over an expanded revenue base.

International
The Company’s international operations (“International”) 
represent the remaining 15% of Company-operated retail 
revenues, 17% of total specialty revenues and 15% of total net 
revenues. International sells coffees and other beverages, whole 
bean coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment 
and merchandise through Company-operated retail stores 
in Canada, the United Kingdom, Thailand, Australia and 
Singapore, as well as through retail store licensing operations 
and foodservice accounts in these and more than 20 other 

countries.  International operations are in various early stages of 
development and have country-specifi c regulatory requirements 
that necessitate a more extensive support organization, relative to 
the current levels of revenue and operating income, than in the 
United States.

International total net revenues increased $200 million, or 
33.2%, to $803 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, compared 
to $603 million for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. Excluding 
the impact of the extra sales week in fi scal 2004, International 
total net revenues increased 30.6%. International Company-
operated retail revenues increased $173 million, or 35.7%, to 
$657 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, compared to $484 
million for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. The increase was 
primarily due to the opening of 120 new Company-operated 
retail stores during the previous 12 months, the weakening 
of the U.S. dollar against both the British pound sterling and 
Canadian dollar, and comparable store sales growth of 6%. The 
increase in comparable store sales resulted from a 5% increase in 
the number of customer transactions and a 1% increase in the 
average value per transaction. Excluding the impact of the extra 
sales week in fi scal 2004, International Company-operated 
retail revenues increased 33.0% to $644 million.

Total International specialty revenues increased $27 million, or 
22.9%, to $146 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, compared 
to $119 million for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003. Excluding 
the impact of the extra sales week in fi scal 2004, International 
specialty revenues increased 20.6% to $144 million. The increase 
was primarily due to higher product sales and royalty revenues 
from opening 293 new licensed retail stores during the previous 
12 months, partially offset by proportionate eliminations of 
sales to equity investees in which the Company increased its 
ownership interest in late fi scal 2003. 

International operating income increased to $53 million for the 
fi scal year ended 2004, compared to $5 million in the 52-week 
period of fi scal 2003. Operating margin increased to 6.6% of 
related revenues from 0.9% in the 52-week period of fi scal 2003, 
primarily due to leverage gained on most fi xed costs distributed 
over an expanded revenue base. 

Unallocated Corporate 
Unallocated corporate expenses pertain to certain functions, 
such as executive management, accounting, administration, 
tax, treasury and information technology infrastructure, 
that support but are not specifi cally attributable to the 
Company’s operating segments and include related depreciation 
and amortization expenses. Unallocated corporate expenses 
increased to $208 million for the fi scal year ended 2004, from 
$187 million in the 52-week period of fi scal 2003, primarily due 
to higher provisions for incentive compensation based on the 
Company’s performance and other payroll-related expenditures. 
Total unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage of total 
net revenues decreased to 3.9% for the fi scal year ended 2004, 
compared to 4.6% for the 52-week period of fi scal 2003.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS – FISCAL 2003 
COMPARED TO FISCAL 2002

Consolidated Results of Operations
Net revenues for the fi scal year ended 2003 increased 23.9% to 
$4.1 billion, from $3.3 billion for the corresponding fi scal 2002 
period. During the fi scal year ended 2003, Starbucks derived 
85% of total net revenues from its Company-operated retail 
stores. Company-operated retail revenues increased 23.5% to 
$3.4 billion for the fi scal year ended 2003, from $2.8 billion 
for the corresponding fi scal 2002 period. This increase was due 
primarily to the opening of 602 new Company-operated retail 
stores during the previous 12 months, comparable store sales 
growth of 8% driven almost entirely by increased transactions, 
and the July 2003 acquisition of 49 Seattle’s Best Coffee and 21 
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Torrefazione Italia stores. 

The Company derived the remaining 15% of total net revenues 
from its Specialty Operations. Specialty revenues, which include 
licensing revenues and foodservice and other revenues, increased 
$129.9 million, or 26.2%, to $625.9 million for the fi scal year 
ended 2003, from $496.0 million for the corresponding fi scal 
2002 period. 

Licensing revenues, which are derived from retail store 
licensing arrangements, grocery and warehouse club licensing 
and certain other branded-product licensed operations, 
increased 31.3% to $409.6 million for the fi scal year ended 
2003, from $311.9 million for the corresponding fi scal 2002 
period. The increase was due to higher product sales and 
royalty revenues from opening 599 new licensed retail stores 
during the previous 12 months and growth in the licensed 
grocery and warehouse club businesses.

Foodservice and other revenues increased 17.5% to $216.3 
million for the fi scal year ended 2003, from $184.1 million 
for the corresponding fi scal 2002 period. The increase was 
primarily attributable to broader distribution and growth in 
new and existing foodservice accounts.

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs increased to 41.4% 
of total net revenues in fi scal 2003, from 41.0% in fi scal 2002. 
The increase was primarily due to higher green coffee costs 
and a shift in specialty revenue mix to lower margin products.  
The Company’s green coffee costs reached a historic low for 
Starbucks in the second and third fi scal quarters of 2002 and 
have gradually increased since then. These increases were 
partially offset by leverage gained on fi xed occupancy costs 
distributed over an expanded revenue base. 

Store operating expenses as a percentage of Company-operated 
retail revenues increased to 40.0% in fi scal 2003, from 39.7% 
in fi scal 2002, primarily due to higher payroll-related and 
advertising expenditures. Payroll-related costs have increased 
primarily due to an increase in the number of partners eligible 
to participate in the Company’s medical and vacation benefi ts. 
Advertising expenditures increased in fi scal 2003 due to 
promotions for new and existing products. These increases 
were partially offset by lower provisions for asset impairment 
for International Company-operated retail stores in 2003 as 
compared to the prior year. 

Other operating expenses (expenses associated with the 
Company’s Specialty Operations) were 22.6% of specialty 
revenues in fi scal 2003, compared to 21.4% in fi scal 2002, 
primarily due to higher payroll-related expenditures to support 
the continued development of the Company’s foodservice 
distribution network and international infrastructure, including 

regional offi ces and fi eld personnel.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $237.8 
million in fi scal 2003, from $205.6 million in fi scal 2002, 
primarily due to opening 602 Company-operated retail stores 
during the previous 12 months and the refurbishment of 
existing Company-operated retail stores.

General and administrative expenses increased to $244.6 million 
in fi scal 2003, compared to $234.6 million in fi scal 2002, which 
included an $18.0 million charge for the litigation settlement of 
two California class action lawsuits. Excluding the litigation 
charge, general and administrative expenses increased $28.0 
million from the comparable fi scal 2002 period due to higher 
payroll-related expenditures and costs related to the acquisition 
of Seattle Coffee Company. General and administrative 
expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased to 6.0% 
in fi scal 2003, compared to 7.1% in fi scal 2002.

Operating income increased 34.3% to $424.7 million in fi scal 
2003, from $316.3 million in fi scal 2002. The operating margin 
increased to 10.4% of total net revenues in fi scal 2003, compared 
to 9.6% in fi scal 2002, primarily due to leverage gained on fi xed 
costs distributed over an expanding revenue base, partially offset 
by higher green coffee costs, as discussed above.

Income from equity investees was $38.4 million in fi scal 
2003, compared to $33.4 million in fi scal 2002. The increase 
was mainly attributable to continued strong results by The 
North American Coffee Partnership, the Company’s 50%-
owned partnership with the Pepsi-Cola Company, from 
expanded ready-to-drink product lines, lower direct costs and 
manufacturing effi ciencies. Partially offsetting this increase 
was the Company’s proportionate share of the net losses of 
Starbucks Japan in fi scal 2003, compared to a net profi t in fi scal 
2002, primarily due to lower average sales per store.

Net interest and other income, which primarily consists of 
interest income, increased to $11.6 million in fi scal 2003, from 
$9.3 million in fi scal 2002. The growth was a result of increased 
interest received on higher balances of cash, cash equivalents 
and liquid securities during fi scal 2003, compared to the prior 
year, as well as gains realized on market revaluations of the 
Company’s trading securities, compared to realized losses on 
this portfolio in the prior year.

The Company’s effective tax rate for fi scal 2003 was 38.5% 
compared to 37.3% in fi scal 2002, as a result of a shift in the 
composition of the Company’s pretax earnings in fi scal 2003. 
Operations taxed in the United States had higher pretax earnings 
and International operations generated greater nondeductible 
losses during fi scal 2003 than during fi scal 2002. 
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Segment Results of Operations
The following tables summarize the Company’s results of operations by segment for fi scal 2003 and 2002 (in thousands):

  % of  % of  % of 
  United States  International Unallocated Total Net
52 weeks ended September 28, 2003 United States Revenue International Revenue Corporate Revenue Consolidated
Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail $ 2,965,618 85.4% $ 484,006 80.3% $ –     – % $ 3,449,624
 Specialty:
  Licensing  301,175 8.7  108,376 18.0  – –  409,551
  Foodservice and other  205,659 5.9  10,688 1.7  – –  216,347
 Total specialty  506,834 14.6  119,064 19.7  – –  625,898
Total net revenues  3,472,452 100.0  603,070 100.0  – –  4,075,522

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs  1,363,267 39.3  322,661 53.5  – –  1,685,928
Store operating expenses  1,199,020 40.4 (1)  180,554 37.3 (1)  – –  1,379,574
Other operating expenses  119,960 23.7 (2)  21,386 18.0 (2)  – –  141,346
Depreciation and amortization expenses  167,138 4.8  38,563 6.4  32,106 0.8  237,807
General and administrative expenses  45,007 1.3  44,352 7.4  155,191 3.8  244,550

Income from equity investees  28,484 0.8  9,912 1.6  – –  38,396
 Operating income/(loss) $ 606,544 17.5% $ 5,466 0.9% $ (187,297)  (4.6)% $ 424,713

  % of  % of  % of 
  United States  International Unallocated Total Net
52 weeks ended September 29, 2002 United States Revenue International Revenue Corporate Revenue Consolidated
Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail $ 2,425,163 85.7% $ 367,741 79.8% $ –     – % $ 2,792,904
 Specialty:
  Licensing  227,711 8.1  84,221 18.3  – –  311,932
  Foodservice and other  175,379 6.2  8,693 1.9  – –  184,072
 Total specialty  403,090 14.3  92,914 20.2  – –  496,004
Total net revenues  2,828,253 100.0  460,655 100.0  – –  3,288,908

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs  1,114,535 39.4  235,476 51.1  – –  1,350,011
Store operating expenses  961,617 39.7 (1)  148,165 40.3 (1)  – –  1,109,782
Other operating expenses  87,718 21.8 (2)  18,366 19.8 (2)  – –  106,084
Depreciation and amortization expenses  142,752 5.0  34,069 7.4  28,736 0.9  205,557
General and administrative expenses  33,928 1.2  35,007 7.6  165,646 5.0  234,581

Income from equity investees  19,182 0.7  14,263 3.1  – –  33,445
 Operating income/(loss) $ 506,885 17.9% $ 3,835 0.8% $ (194,382)  (5.9)%  $ 316,338

(1) Shown as a percentage of related Company-operated retail revenues.
(2) Shown as a percentage of related total specialty revenues.

United States
United States total net revenues increased by $644.2 million, 
or 22.8%, to $3.5 billion in fi scal year 2003 from $2.8 billion 
in fi scal 2002. United States Company-operated retail revenues 
increased $540.5 million, or 22.3%, to $3.0 billion, primarily 
due to the opening of 506 new Company-operated retail stores 
in fi scal 2003 and comparable store sales growth of 9%. The 
increase in comparable store sales was almost entirely due to 
higher transaction volume. 

Total United States specialty revenues increased $103.7 million, 
or 25.7%, to $506.8 million in fi scal 2003, compared to $403.1 
million in fi scal 2002. United States licensing revenues increased 
$73.5 million, or 32.3%, to $301.1 million in fi scal 2003. The 
increase was primarily due to higher product sales and royalty 
revenues as a result of opening 315 new licensed retail stores 
during the previous 12 months and growth in the grocery and 
warehouse club businesses. United States foodservice and other 
revenues increased $30.3 million, or 17.3%, to $205.7 million in 
fi scal 2003, due to broader distribution and growth in new and 
existing foodservice accounts.

United States operating income increased 19.7% to $606.5 
million in fi scal 2003, from $506.9 million in fi scal 2002. 
Operating margin decreased to 17.5% of related revenues from 
17.9% in the prior year, primarily due to higher green coffee 
costs and payroll-related expenditures, partially offset by fi xed 
occupancy costs distributed over an expanding revenue base. 

International
International total net revenues increased $142.4 million, or 
30.9%, to $603.1 million in fi scal 2003, from $460.7 million for 
the corresponding fi scal 2002 period. International Company-
operated retail revenues increased $116.3 million, or 31.6%, 
to $484.0 million, primarily due to the opening of 96 new 
Company-operated retail stores in fi scal 2003 and comparable 
store sales growth of 7%. The increase in comparable store sales 
was almost entirely due to higher transaction volume and refl ects 
the improved operational execution in the U.K. market. 

Total International specialty revenues increased $26.1 million, 
or 28.1%, to $119.1 million in fi scal 2003, from $92.9 million 
in fi scal 2002. The increase was primarily due to higher product 
sales and royalty revenues from opening 284 new licensed retail 
stores during the previous 12 months.  

International operating income increased 42.5% to $5.5 million 
in fi scal 2003, from $3.8 million in fi scal 2002. Operating 
margin increased to 0.9% of related revenues from 0.8% in 
the corresponding fi scal 2003 period, primarily due to lower 
provisions recorded for retail store asset impairment and disposals 
of $3.7 million in fi scal 2003, compared to $13.9 million in fi scal 
2002. This was partially offset by International’s proportionate 
share of net losses in Starbucks Japan and a shift in sales mix to 
lower-margin products.
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Unallocated Corporate 
Unallocated corporate expenses decreased to $187.3 million 
in fi scal 2003, from $194.4 million in fi scal 2002, primarily 
due to an $18.0 million litigation settlement in fi scal 2002, 
partially offset by higher payroll-related expenditures in fi scal 
2003. Total unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage of 
total net revenues decreased from 5.9% in fi scal 2002 to 4.6% 
in fi scal 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The following table represents components of the Company’s 
most liquid assets (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Cash and cash equivalents $ 299,128 $ 200,907
Short-term investments – 
 available-for-sale and trading securities  353,881  149,104
Long-term investments – 
 available-for-sale securities   135,179  136,159
Total cash, cash equivalents 
 and liquid investments $ 788,188 $ 486,170

The Company manages its cash, cash equivalents and liquid 
investments in order to internally fund operating needs. Cash 
and cash equivalents increased by $98 million for the fi scal 
year ended 2004, to $299 million. The Company ended the 
period with $788 million in total cash, cash equivalents and 
liquid investments.

The Company intends to use its available cash resources to 
invest in its core businesses and other new business opportunities 
related to its core businesses. The Company may use its available 
cash resources to make proportionate capital contributions to 
its equity method and cost method investees. Depending on 
market conditions, Starbucks may acquire additional shares 
of its common stock. Management believes that existing cash 
and investments, as well as cash generated from operations, 
should be suffi cient to fi nance capital requirements for its core 
businesses for the foreseeable future. Signifi cant new joint 
ventures, acquisitions or other new business opportunities may 
require outside funding.

Other than normal operating expenses, cash requirements 
for fi scal 2005 are expected to consist primarily of capital 
expenditures related to new Company-operated retail stores, 
as well as for the remodeling and refurbishment of existing 
Company-operated retail stores. Management expects capital 
expenditures in fi scal 2005 to be in the range of $600 million 
to $650 million.

Cash provided by operating activities totaled $794 million in 
fi scal 2004 and was generated primarily by net earnings of $392 
million and noncash depreciation and amortization expenses of 
$305 million. 

Cash used by investing activities totaled $632 million in 
fi scal 2004. Net capital additions to property, plant and 
equipment used $386 million, primarily from opening 634 new 
Company-operated retail stores and remodeling certain existing 
stores. Gross capital additions for fi scal 2004 were $434 million 
and were offset by the change in disposal and impairment 
provisions and foreign currency translation adjustments totaling 
$48 million. The net activity in the Company’s portfolio of 
available-for-sale securities during fi scal 2004 used $212 million. 
Excess cash was invested in investment-grade securities. During 
fi scal 2004, the Company made additional equity investments 
of its proportionate share in a number of its International 
investees and acquired a 49.9% interest in its Malaysia licensed 
operations for a total of $65 million, excluding the effects of 
foreign currency fl uctuations.

Cash used by fi nancing activities in fi scal 2004 totaled 
$67 million. During fi scal 2004, the Company repurchased 
5 million shares of its common stock at an average price of 
$40.85 per share, using $203 million of cash. Share repurchases 
are at the discretion of management and depend on market 
conditions, capital requirements and such other factors as 
the Company may consider relevant. As of October 3, 2004, 
19 million additional shares were authorized for repurchase. The 
exercise of employee stock options and the sale of the Company’s 
common stock from employee stock purchase plans provided 
$138 million. As options granted under the Company’s stock 
plans are exercised, the Company will continue to receive 
proceeds and a tax deduction; however, the amounts and the 
timing cannot be predicted.

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations and borrowings as of October 3, 2004, and the timing 
and effect that such commitments are expected to have on the Company’s liquidity and capital requirements in future periods 
(in thousands):

 Payments Due by Period 
  Less than 1–3  3–5 More than
Contractual obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term debt obligations $ 4,353 $ 735 $ 1,510 $ 1,565 $ 543
Operating lease obligations  2,609,036  355,079  661,407  572,407  1,020,143
Purchase obligations  283,379  188,884  89,720  4,775  –
Total $ 2,896,768 $ 544,698 $ 752,637 $ 578,747 $ 1,020,686

Starbucks expects to fund these commitments primarily with operating cash fl ows generated in the normal course of business.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement 
The Company has unconditionally guaranteed the repayment 
of certain Japanese yen–denominated bank loans and related 
interest and fees of an unconsolidated equity investee, Starbucks 
Japan. The guarantees continue until the loans, including 
accrued interest and fees, have been paid in full. The maximum 
amount is limited to the sum of unpaid principal and interest 
amounts, as well as other related expenses. These amounts 
will vary based on fl uctuations in the yen foreign exchange 
rate. As of October 3, 2004, the maximum amount of the 
guarantees was approximately $10.6 million. Since there has 
been no modifi cation of these loan guarantees subsequent 
to the Company’s adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 45, 
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for 
Guarantees, Including Indebtedness of Others” (“FIN 45,”) 
Starbucks has applied the disclosure provisions only and has not 
recorded the guarantee in its statement of fi nancial position.

Product Warranties
Coffee brewing and espresso equipment sold to customers 
through Company-operated and licensed retail stores, as well 
as equipment sold to the Company’s licensees for use in retail 
licensing operations, are under warranty for defects in materials 
and workmanship for a period ranging from 12 to 24 months. 
The Company establishes an accrual for estimated warranty 
costs at the time of sale, based on historical experience. The 
following table summarizes the activity related to product 
warranty reserves during fi scal 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 2,227 $ 1,842
Provision for warranties issued  5,093  2,895
Warranty claims   (4,229)   (2,510) 
Balance at end of fiscal year $ 3,091 $ 2,227

COMMODITY PRICES, AVAILABILITY AND 
GENERAL RISK CONDITIONS
The supply and price of coffee are subject to signifi cant volatility. 
Although most coffee trades in the commodity market, coffee of 
the quality sought by Starbucks tends to trade on a negotiated 
basis at a substantial premium above commodity coffee prices, 
depending upon the supply and demand at the time of purchase. 
Supply and price can be affected by multiple factors in the 
producing countries, including weather, political and economic 
conditions. In addition, green coffee prices have been affected 
in the past, and may be affected in the future, by the actions 
of certain organizations and associations that have historically 
attempted to infl uence commodity prices of green coffee 
through agreements establishing export quotas or restricting 
coffee supplies worldwide. The Company’s ability to raise sales 
prices in response to rising coffee prices may be limited, and 
the Company’s profi tability could be adversely affected if coffee 
prices were to rise substantially. 

The Company enters into fi xed-price purchase commitments 
in order to secure an adequate supply of quality green coffee 
and bring greater certainty to the cost of sales in future periods. 
As of October 3, 2004, the Company had $271.7 million in 
fi xed-price purchase commitments, which, together with 
existing inventory, are expected to provide an adequate supply 
of green coffee through calendar 2005. The Company believes, 
based on relationships established with its suppliers in the past, 
the risk of nondelivery on such purchase commitments is low. 

During fi scal 2004, fl uid milk prices in the United States, 
which closely follow the monthly Class I base price as 
calculated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, reached an 
all-time high. Should dairy costs remain at current levels or 
continue to rise, the Company’s profi tability could be adversely 
affected. While management continues to closely monitor 
published dairy prices on the related commodities markets, 

management cannot predict with any certainty the future 
prices to be paid for dairy products.

In addition to fl uctuating commodity prices, management 
believes that the Company’s future results of operations and 
earnings could be signifi cantly impacted by other factors, such 
as increased competition within the specialty coffee industry, 
the Company’s ability to fi nd optimal store locations at favorable 
lease rates, increased costs associated with opening and operating 
retail stores and the Company’s continued ability to hire, train 
and retain qualifi ed personnel, as well as other factors discussed 
under “Certain Additional Risks and Uncertainties” in the 
“Business” section of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the fi scal year ended October 3, 2004. 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Company is exposed to market risk related to foreign 
currency exchange rates, equity security prices and changes in 
interest rates.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
The majority of the Company’s revenue, expense and capital 
purchasing activities is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, 
because a portion of the Company’s operations consists of 
activities outside of the United States, the Company has 
transactions in other currencies, primarily the Canadian dollar, 
British pound sterling, Euro and Japanese yen. As part of its 
risk management strategy, the Company frequently evaluates its 
foreign currency exchange risk by monitoring market data and 
external factors that may infl uence exchange rate fl uctuations. As 
a result, Starbucks may engage in transactions involving various 
derivative instruments, with maturities generally not exceeding 
fi ve years, to hedge assets, liabilities, revenues and purchases 
denominated in foreign currencies. 

As of October 3, 2004, the Company had forward foreign 
exchange contracts that qualify as cash fl ow hedges under SFAS 
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities,” to hedge a portion of anticipated international 
revenue and product purchases. In addition, Starbucks had 
forward foreign exchange contracts that qualify as a hedge of its 
net investment in Starbucks Japan. These contracts expire within 
31 months. 

Based on the foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of 
October 3, 2004, a 10% devaluation of the U.S. dollar as 
compared to the level of foreign exchange rates for currencies 
under contract as of October 3, 2004, would result in 
reduced fair value of these derivative fi nancial instruments 
of approximately $20.7 million, of which $14.0 million may 
reduce the Company’s future net earnings. Conversely, a 10% 
appreciation of the U.S. dollar would result in an increase in 
the fair value of these instruments of approximately $18.1 
million, of which $12.6 million may increase the Company’s 
future net earnings. Consistent with the nature of the economic 
hedges provided by these foreign exchange contracts, increases 
or decreases in the fair value would be mostly offset by 
corresponding decreases or increases in the dollar value of the 
Company’s foreign investment, future foreign currency royalty 
fee payments and product purchases that would occur within 
the hedging period.

Equity Security Price Risk
The Company has minimal exposure to price fl uctuations on 
equity mutual funds within its trading portfolio. The trading 
securities approximate a portion of the Company’s liability under 
the Management Deferred Compensation Plan (“MDCP”). A 
corresponding liability is included in “Accrued compensation and 
related costs” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
These investments are recorded at fair value with unrealized 
gains and losses recognized in “Interest and other income, net.” 
The offsetting changes in the MDCP liability are recorded in 
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“General and administrative expenses” on the accompanying 
consolidated statements of earnings. 

Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s diversifi ed available-for-sale portfolios consist 
mainly of fi xed income instruments. The primary objectives of 
these investments are to preserve capital and liquidity. Available-
for-sale securities are investment grade and are recorded on 
the balance sheet at fair value with unrealized gains and losses 
reported as a separate component of “Accumulated other 
comprehensive income/(loss).” The Company does not hedge 
its interest rate exposure. The Company performed a sensitivity 
analysis based on a 10% change in the underlying interest rate 
of its interest bearing fi nancial instruments held at the end of 
fi scal 2004, and determined that such a change would not have a 
material effect on the fair value of these instruments.

SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY RESULTS
The Company’s business is subject to seasonal fl uctuations. 
Signifi cant portions of the Company’s net revenues and profi ts 
are realized during the fi rst quarter of the Company’s fi scal 
year, which includes the December holiday season. In addition, 
quarterly results are affected by the timing of the opening of 
new stores, and the Company’s rapid growth may conceal the 
impact of other seasonal infl uences. Because of the seasonality 
of the Company’s business, results for any quarter are not 
necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for 
the full fi scal year. 

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Critical accounting policies are those that management believes 
are both most important to the portrayal of the Company’s 
fi nancial condition and results, and require management’s most 
diffi cult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of 
the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are 
inherently uncertain. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the 
application of those policies may result in materially different 
amounts being reported under different conditions or using 
different assumptions. 

Starbucks considers its policies on impairment of long-lived 
assets to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are 
involved in preparing its consolidated fi nancial statements. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
When facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying 
values of long-lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of 
recoverability is performed by comparing the carrying values of 
the assets to projected future cash fl ows, in addition to other 
quantitative and qualitative analyses. For goodwill and other 
intangible assets, impairment tests are performed annually and 
more frequently if facts and circumstances indicate goodwill 
carrying values exceed estimated reporting unit fair values 
and if indefi nite useful lives are no longer appropriate for the 
Company’s trademarks. Upon indication that the carrying 
values of such assets may not be recoverable, the Company 
recognizes an impairment loss as a charge against current 
operations. Property, plant and equipment assets are grouped at 
the lowest level for which there are identifi able cash fl ows when 
assessing impairment. Cash fl ows for retail assets are identifi ed at 
the individual store level. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are 
reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value, less 
estimated costs to sell. Judgments made by the Company related 

to the expected useful lives of long-lived assets and the ability of 
the Company to realize undiscounted cash fl ows in excess of the 
carrying amounts of such assets are affected by factors such as the 
ongoing maintenance and improvements of the assets, changes 
in economic conditions and changes in operating performance. 
As the Company assesses the ongoing expected cash fl ows and 
carrying amounts of its long-lived assets, these factors could 
cause the Company to realize material impairment charges. 

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 Revised, 
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities – an Interpretation 
of ARB No. 51” (“FIN 46R”), which provided, among other 
things, immediate deferral of the application of FIN 46 for 
entities that did not originally qualify as special purpose 
entities, and provided additional scope exceptions for joint 
ventures with business operations and franchises. The 
Company’s adoption of FIN 46R did not have an impact on 
its consolidated fi nancial statements.

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting 
Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104”). 
SAB 104 rescinds the accounting guidance contained in 
SAB 101,  “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” and 
incorporates the body of previously issued guidance related 
to multiple-element revenue arrangements. The Company’s 
adoption of SAB 104 did not have an impact on its consolidated 
fi nancial statements.

In March 2004, the FASB ratifi ed Emerging Issues Task 
Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-
Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain 
Investments” (“EITF 03-1”), but delayed the recognition and 
measurement provisions of EITF 03-1 in September 2004. 
For reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004, only the 
disclosure requirements for available-for-sale securities and cost 
method investments are required. The Company’s adoption of 
the requiremens in the fi scal fourth quarter of 2004 did not 
have a signifi cant impact on the Company’s disclosures. 

In July 2004, the FASB issued EITF Issue No. 02-14, 
“Whether an Investor Should Apply the Equity Method of 
Accounting to Investments Other Than Common Stock” 
(“EITF 02-14”). EITF 02-14 requires application of the 
equity method of accounting when an investor is able to 
exert signifi cant infl uence over operating and fi nancial 
policies of an investee through ownership of common stock 
or in-substance common stock. EITF 02-14 is effective for 
reporting periods beginning after September 15, 2004. The 
adoption of EITF 02-14 will not have a signifi cant impact on 
the Company’s consolidated fi nancial position or results of 
operations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS 
In thousands, except earnings per share

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Net revenues:
 Company-operated retail $ 4,457,378 $ 3,449,624  $ 2,792,904
 Specialty: 
  Licensing  565,798  409,551  311,932
  Foodservice and other  271,071  216,347  184,072
 Total specialty  836,869  625,898  496,004
Total net revenues  5,294,247  4,075,522  3,288,908

Cost of sales including occupancy costs  2,198,654  1,685,928  1,350,011
Store operating expenses  1,790,168  1,379,574  1,109,782
Other operating expenses  171,648  141,346  106,084
Depreciation and amortization expenses  280,024  237,807  205,557
General and administrative expenses  304,293  244,550  234,581
 Subtotal operating expenses  4,744,787  3,689,205  3,006,015

Income from equity investees  60,657  38,396  33,445
Operating income  610,117  424,713  316,338

Interest and other income, net  14,140  11,622  9,300
Gain on sale of investment  –  –  13,361
Earnings before income taxes  624,257  436,335  338,999

Income taxes  232,482  167,989  126,313
 Net earnings $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686

Net earnings per common share – basic $ 0.99 $ 0.69 $ 0.55
Net earnings per common share – diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.67 $ 0.54
Weighted average shares outstanding:
 Basic  397,173  390,753  385,575
 Diluted  411,465  401,648  397,526

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
In thousands, except share data

Fiscal year ended   Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003

ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents   $ 299,128 $ 200,907
  Short-term investments – available-for-sale securities    329,082  128,905
  Short-term investments – trading securities    24,799  20,199
  Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $2,231 and $4,809, respectively    131,015  114,448
  Inventories    422,663  342,944
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets    71,347  55,173
  Deferred income taxes, net    81,240  61,453
   Total current assets    1,359,274  924,029

Long-term investments – available-for-sale securities    135,179  136,159
Equity and other investments    171,747  144,257
Property, plant and equipment, net    1,471,446  1,384,902
Other assets    85,561  52,113
Other intangible assets    26,800  24,942
Goodwill    68,950  63,344
TOTAL ASSETS   $ 3,318,957 $ 2,729,746

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable   $ 191,574 $ 168,984
  Accrued compensation and related costs    208,927  152,608
  Accrued occupancy costs    65,873  56,179
  Accrued taxes    63,038  54,934
  Other accrued expenses    122,245  101,800
  Deferred revenue    121,377  73,476
  Current portion of long-term debt    735  722
   Total current liabilities    773,769  608,703

Deferred income taxes, net    46,683  33,217
Long-term debt    3,618  4,354
Other long-term liabilities    8,132  1,045
Shareholders’ equity:
  Common stock and additional paid-in capital – authorized, 600,000,000 shares; 
   issued and outstanding, 397,405,844 and 393,692,536 shares, respectively,
   (includes 1,697,100 common stock units in both periods)    956,685  959,103
  Other additional paid-in capital    39,393  39,393
  Retained earnings    1,461,458  1,069,683
  Accumulated other comprehensive income    29,219  14,248
   Total shareholders’ equity    2,486,755  2,082,427
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   $ 3,318,957 $ 2,729,746

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
 Depreciation and amortization  304,820  259,271  221,141
 Gain on sale of investment  –  –  (13,361)
 Provision for impairments and asset disposals  13,568  7,784  26,852
 Deferred income taxes, net  (3,073)  (5,932)  (6,088)
 Equity in income of investees  (33,387)  (22,813)  (19,584)
 Tax benefit from exercise of nonqualified stock options  63,405  36,590  44,199
 Net accretion of discount and amortization of premium on marketable securities  11,603  5,996  –
 Cash provided/(used) by changes in operating assets and liabilities:
  Inventories  (77,662)  (64,768)  (41,379)
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets  (16,621)  (12,861)  (12,460)
  Accounts payable  20,175  24,990  5,463
  Accrued compensation and related costs  54,929  42,132  24,087
  Accrued occupancy costs  8,900  4,293  15,343
  Deferred revenue  47,590  30,732  15,321
  Other accrued expenses  15,027  9,471  31,900
  Other operating assets and liabilities  (7,201)   (16,784)   (26,435)
Net cash provided by operating activities  793,848  566,447  477,685

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Purchase of available-for-sale securities  (566,645)  (323,331)  (339,968)
 Maturity of available-for-sale securities  163,814  180,687  78,349
 Sale of available-for-sale securities  190,748  88,889  144,760
 Acquisitions, net of cash acquired  (7,515)  (69,928)  –
 Net additions to equity, other investments and other assets  (64,747)  (47,259)  (15,841)
 Distributions from equity investees  38,328  28,966  22,834
 Net additions to property, plant and equipment  (386,176)   (357,282)   (375,474)

Net cash used by investing activities  (632,193)  (499,258)  (485,340)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock  137,590  107,183  107,467
 Principal payments on long-term debt  ,(722)  ,(710)  ,(697)
 Repurchase of common stock  (203,413)  (75,710)  (52,248)
Net cash provided/(used) by financing activities  (66,545)  30,763  54,522
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  3,111  3,278  1,560
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  98,221  101,230  48,427

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of period  200,907  99,677    51,250   
End of period $ 299,128 $ 200,907 $ 99,677

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for:
 Interest $ ,370 $ ,265 $ ,303
 Income taxes $ 172,759 $ 140,107 $ 105,339

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
In thousands, except share data

     Accumulated
   Additional  Other
                             Common Stock  Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
 Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Total
Balance, September 30, 2001 380,044,042 $ 380 $ 791,242 $  588,651 $ (5,408) $ 1,374,865

  Net earnings ,    –  –  –   212,686  ,–  ,212,686
  Unrealized holding losses, net ,    –  ,–  –   –  (1,509)   (1,509)
  Translation adjustment ,    – , –  –   –  (1,664)   (1,664)
  Comprehensive income             209,513

  Equity adjustment related to equity
   Investee transaction ,    – , –  39,393   –  ,–   39,393
  Exercise of stock options,
    including tax benefit of $44,199 9,830,136  10  135,465   –  ,–   135,475
  Sale of common stock ,991,742  1  16,190   –  ,–   16,191
  Repurchase of common stock (2,637,328)  (3)   (52,245)   –  ,–   (52,248)
Balance, September 29, 2002 388,228,592  388  930,045   801,337  (8,581)  1,723,189

  Net earnings ,    – ,     –  –   268,346  ,–   268,346
  Unrealized holding losses, net ,    – ,     – , –   –  (4,426)   (4,426)
  Translation adjustment ,    –  ,    –  –   –  27,255   27,255
  Comprehensive income             291,175

  Exercise of stock options,
   including tax benefit of $35,547 8,019,604  8  129,100   –  ,–   129,108
  Sale of common stock,
   including tax benefit of $1,043 ,743,340  1  14,664   –  ,–   14,665
  Repurchase of common stock (3,299,000)  (3)   (75,707)   –  ,–   (75,710)
Balance, September 28, 2003 393,692,536  394  998,102  1,069,683  14,248             2,082,427

  Net earnings ,    –  –  ,–   391,775  ,–   391,775
  Unrealized holding losses, net ,    –  –  ,–   –  (4,925)   (4,925)
  Translation adjustment ,    –  –  ,–   –  19,896   19,896
  Comprehensive income             406,746

  Exercise of stock options, 
   including tax benefit of $62,415 7,708,491  7  172,025   –  ,–   172,032
  Sale of common stock,
   including tax benefit of $990 ,984,072  1  28,962   –  ,–   28,963
  Repurchase of common stock (4,979,255)  (5)   (203,408)   –  ,–   (203,413)
Balance, October 3, 2004 397,405,844 $ 397 $ 995,681 $ 1,461,458 $ 29,219 $ 2,486,755

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Years ended October 3, 2004, September 28, 2003, and 
September 29, 2002

Note 1: Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies

Description of Business
Starbucks Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, “Starbucks” 
or the “Company”) purchases and roasts high-quality whole 
bean coffees and sells them, along with fresh, rich-brewed 
coffees, Italian-style espresso beverages, cold blended beverages, 
a variety of complementary food items, coffee-related accessories 
and equipment, a selection of premium teas and a line of 
compact discs, primarily through its Company-operated retail 
stores. Starbucks sells coffee and tea products through other 
channels and, through certain of its equity investees, Starbucks 
also produces and sells bottled Frappuccino® and Starbucks 
DoubleShot® coffee drinks and a line of superpremium ice 
creams. These nonretail channels are collectively known as 
“Specialty Operations.” The Company’s objective is to establish 
Starbucks as the most recognized and respected brand in the 
world. To achieve this goal, the Company plans to continue rapid 
expansion of its retail operations, to grow its Specialty Operations 
and to selectively pursue other opportunities to leverage the 
Starbucks brand through the introduction of new products and 
the development of new channels of distribution. 

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated fi nancial statements refl ect the fi nancial 
position and operating results of Starbucks, which include wholly 
owned subsidiaries and investees controlled by the Company. 

Investments in entities that the Company does not control, but 
has the ability to exercise signifi cant infl uence over operating and 
fi nancial policies, are accounted for under the equity method. 
Investments in entities in which Starbucks does not have the 
ability to exercise signifi cant infl uence are accounted for under 
the cost method. 

All signifi cant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Fiscal Year End
The Company’s fi scal year ends on the Sunday closest to 
September 30. The fi scal year ended October 3, 2004, included 
53 weeks. The fi scal years ended September 28, 2003, and 
September 29, 2002, each included 52 weeks. 

Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a 
maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash 
equivalents. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalent 
balances with fi nancial institutions that exceed federally insured 
limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related 
to these balances, and management believes its credit risk to 
be minimal.

Cash Management
The Company’s cash management system provides for the 
reimbursement of all major bank disbursement accounts on a 
daily basis. Checks issued but not presented for payment to the 
bank are refl ected as a reduction of cash and cash equivalents on 
the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements. 

Short-term and Long-term Investments
The Company’s short-term and long-term investments consist 
primarily of investment-grade marketable debt securities, as well 
as bond and equity mutual funds, all of which are classifi ed as 
trading or available-for-sale. Trading securities are recorded at 
fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses included in net 
earnings. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value, 
and unrealized holding gains and losses are recorded, net of tax, 
as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive 
income. Available-for-sale securities with remaining maturities 
of less than one year are classifi ed as short-term, and all 
other available-for-sale securities are classifi ed as long-term. 
Unrealized losses are charged against net earnings when a 
decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary. 
Management reviews several factors to determine whether a loss 
is other than temporary, such as the length of time a security is in 
an unrealized loss position, extent to which fair value is less than 
amortized cost, the impact of changing interest rates in the short 
and long term and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the 
security for a period of time suffi cient to allow for any anticipated 
recovery in fair value. Realized gains and losses are accounted 
for on the specifi c identifi cation method. Purchases and sales are 
recorded on a trade date basis. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair 
value because of the short-term maturity of those instruments. 
The fair value of the Company’s investments in marketable debt 
and equity securities, as well as bond and equity mutual funds, 
is based upon the quoted market price on the last business day 
of the fi scal year. For equity securities of companies that are 
privately held, or where an observable quoted market price does 
not exist, the Company estimates fair value using a variety of 
valuation methodologies. Such methodologies include comparing 
the security with securities of publicly traded companies in 
similar lines of business, applying revenue multiples to estimated 
future operating results for the private company and estimating 
discounted cash fl ows for that company. Declines in fair value 
below the Company’s carrying value deemed to be other than 
temporary are charged against earnings. For further information 
on investments, see Notes 4 and 7. The carrying value of long-
term debt approximates fair value. 

Derivative Instruments
The Company manages its exposure to foreign currency risk 
within the consolidated fi nancial statements according to a 
hedging policy. Under the policy, Starbucks may engage in 
transactions involving various derivative instruments with 
maturities generally not longer than fi ve years, to hedge assets, 
liabilities, revenues and purchases denominated in foreign 
currencies. 

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended and 
interpreted, which requires that all derivatives be recorded on 
the balance sheet at fair value. For a cash fl ow hedge, the effective 
portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a 
component of other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and 
subsequently reclassifi ed into net earnings when the hedged 
exposure affects net earnings. For a net investment hedge, the 
effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is reported as a 
component of OCI. 

Cash fl ow hedges related to anticipated transactions are 
designated and documented at the inception of each hedge by 
matching the terms of the contract to the underlying transaction. 
The Company classifi es the cash fl ows from hedging transactions 
in the same categories as the cash fl ows from the respective 
hedged items. Once established, cash fl ow hedges are generally 
not removed until maturity unless an anticipated transaction 
is no longer likely to occur. Discontinued or derecognized cash 
fl ow hedges are immediately settled with counterparties, and 
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the related accumulated derivative gains or losses are recognized 
into net earnings in “Interest and other income, net” on the 
consolidated statements of earnings. 

Forward contract effectiveness for cash fl ow hedges is calculated 
by comparing the fair value of the contract to the change in 
value of the anticipated transaction using forward rates on a 
monthly basis. For net investment hedges, the spot-to-spot 
method is used to calculate effectiveness. Any ineffectiveness is 
recognized immediately in “Interest and other income, net” on 
the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings. 

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (primarily moving 
average cost) or market. The Company records inventory 
reserves for obsolete and slow-moving items and for estimated 
shrinkage between physical inventory counts. Inventory reserves 
are based on inventory turnover trends, historical experience and 
application of the specifi c identifi cation method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment, which includes assets under capital leases, is provided 
on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives, generally 
ranging from two to seven years for equipment and 30 to 40 
years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized over 
the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related lease life, 
generally 10 years. The portion of depreciation expense related to 
production and distribution facilities is included in “Cost of sales 
and related occupancy costs” on the accompanying consolidated 
statements of earnings. The costs of repairs and maintenance are 
expensed when incurred, while expenditures for refurbishments 
and improvements that signifi cantly add to the productive 
capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. When 
assets are retired or sold, the asset cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are eliminated with any remaining gain or loss 
refl ected in net earnings. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
At the beginning of fi scal 2003, Starbucks adopted SFAS 
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”). 
As a result, the Company discontinued amortization of its 
goodwill and indefi nite-lived trademarks and determined that 
provisions for impairment were unnecessary. Impairment tests 
are performed annually in June and more frequently if facts and 
circumstances indicate goodwill carrying values exceed estimated 
reporting unit fair values and if indefi nite useful lives are no 
longer appropriate for the Company’s trademarks. If the 
nonamortization provision of SFAS 142 had been applied to 
fi scal 2002, net earnings would have been $214.7 million, as 
compared to actual net earnings of $212.7 million. Basic earnings 
per share for fi scal 2002 would have increased to $0.56 per share 
from $0.55 per share, while diluted earnings per share would 
have remained unchanged. Defi nite-lived intangibles, which 
mainly consist of contract-based patents and copyrights, are 
amortized over their estimated useful lives. For further 
information on goodwill and other intangible assets, see Note 9.

Long-Lived Assets 
When facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values of 
long-lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of recoverability 
is performed by comparing the carrying values of the assets to 
projected future cash fl ows in addition to other quantitative and 
qualitative analyses. Upon indication that the carrying values 
of such assets may not be recoverable, the Company recognizes 
an impairment loss by a charge against current operations. 
Property, plant and equipment assets are grouped at the lowest 
level for which there are identifi able cash fl ows when assessing 
impairment. Cash fl ows for retail assets are identifi ed at the 
individual store level. 

Insurance Reserves
The Company uses a combination of insurance and self-insurance 
mechanisms, including a wholly owned captive insurance entity 
and participation in a reinsurance pool, to provide for the 
potential liabilities for workers’ compensation, general liability, 
property insurance, director and offi cers’ liability insurance, 
vehicle liability and employee healthcare benefi ts. Liabilities 
associated with the risks that are retained by the Company are 
estimated, in part, by considering historical claims experience, 
demographic factors, severity factors and other actuarial 
assumptions. The estimated accruals for these liabilities could 
be signifi cantly affected if future occurrences and claims differ 
from these assumptions and historical trends. As of October 3, 
2004, and September 28, 2003, these reserves were $77.6 million 
and $51.6 million, respectively, and were included in “Accrued 
compensation and related costs” and “Other accrued expenses” 
on the consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition
Company-operated retail store revenues are recognized when 
payment is tendered at the point of sale. Revenues from 
stored value cards are recognized upon redemption. Until 
the redemption of stored value cards, outstanding customer 
balances on such cards are included in “Deferred revenue” on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Specialty revenues 
consist primarily of product sales to customers other than 
through Company-operated retail stores, as well as royalties and 
other fees generated from licensing operations. Sales of coffee, tea 
and related products are generally recognized upon shipment to 
customers, depending on contract terms. Initial nonrefundable 
development fees required under licensing agreements are 
recognized upon substantial performance of services for new 
market business development activities, such as initial business, 
real estate and store development planning, as well as providing 
operational materials and functional training courses for opening 
new licensed retail markets. Additional store licensing fees are 
recognized when new licensed stores are opened. Royalty revenues 
based upon a percentage of reported sales and other continuing 
fees, such as marketing and service fees, are recognized on a 
monthly basis when earned. Arrangements involving multiple 
elements and deliverables are individually evaluated for revenue 
recognition. Cash payments received in advance of product or 
service delivery are recorded as deferred revenue. Consolidated 
revenues are net of all intercompany eliminations for wholly 
owned subsidiaries and for licensees accounted for under the 
equity method based on the Company’s percentage ownership. 
All revenues are recognized net of any discounts. 

Advertising
The Company expenses costs of advertising the fi rst time the 
advertising campaign takes place. Total advertising expenses, 
recorded in “Store operating expenses” and “Other operating 
expenses” on the accompanying consolidated statements of 
earnings totaled $68.3 million, $49.5 million and $25.6 million 
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Store Preopening Expenses
Costs incurred in connection with the start-up and promotion of 
new store openings are expensed as incurred.

Rent Expense
Certain of the Company’s lease agreements provide for scheduled 
rent increases during the lease terms or for rental payments 
commencing at a date other than the date of initial occupancy. 
Minimum rental expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis 
over the terms of the leases. 
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Stock-based Compensation
The Company maintains several stock option plans under which incentive stock options and nonqualifi ed stock options may be 
granted to employees, consultants and nonemployee directors. Starbucks accounts for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic 
value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and 
related interpretations. Accordingly, because the grant price equals the market price on the date of grant, no compensation expense is 
recognized by the Company for stock options issued to employees. 

If compensation cost for the Company’s stock options had been recognized based upon the estimated fair value on the grant date 
under the fair value methodology allowed by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS 123”) as amended, 
the Company’s net earnings and earnings per share would have been as follows (in thousands, except earnings per share): 

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002

Net earnings $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686
Deduct: stock-based compensation expense determined under fair
 value method, net of tax  45,056  37,436  37,447
Pro forma net income $ 346,719 $ 230,910 $ 175,239

Net earnings per common share – basic:
  As reported $ 0.99 $ 0.69 $ 0.55
  Pro forma $ 0.87 $ 0.59 $ 0.45

Net earnings per common share – diluted
  As reported $ 0.95 $ 0.67 $ 0.54
  Pro forma $ 0.85 $ 0.58 $ 0.44

The above pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share has been determined as if the Company had accounted 
for its employee stock options under the fair value method. The fair value for these stock options was estimated at the date of grant 
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

  Employee Stock Options
Fiscal year ended 2004 2003 2002
Expected life (years) 1–6 2–5 2–5
Expected volatility 22%–50% 37%–55% 43%–54%
Risk-free interest rate 1.10%–4.52% 0.92%–4.01% 1.63%–4.96%
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
  Employee Stock Purchase Plans
Fiscal year ended 2004 2003 2002
Expected life (years) 0.25–3 0.25–3 0.25
Expected volatility 19%–43% 30%–50% 33%–51%
Risk-free interest rate 0.93%–2.3% 0.87%–2.25% 1.93%–2.73%
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The Company’s valuations are based upon a multiple option 
valuation approach, and forfeitures are recognized as they occur. 
The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for 
use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have 
no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, 
option valuation models require the input of highly subjective 
assumptions, including the expected stock-price volatility. 
The Company’s employee stock options have characteristics 
signifi cantly different from those of traded options, and changes 
in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair 
value estimate. Because Company stock options do not trade 
on a secondary exchange, employees can receive no value nor 
derive any benefi t from holding stock options under these plans 
without an increase, above the grant price, in the market price 
of the Company’s stock. Such an increase in stock price would 
benefi t all stockholders commensurately. 

As required by SFAS 123, the Company has determined that the 
weighted average estimated fair values of options granted during 
fi scal 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $10.60, $8.31 and $6.48 per 
share, respectively. 

Foreign Currency Translation
The Company’s international operations generally use their 
local currency as their functional currency. Assets and liabilities 
are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet 
date. Income and expense accounts are translated at the 
average monthly exchange rates during the year. Resulting 
translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss). 

Income Taxes
The Company computes income taxes using the asset and liability 
method, under which deferred income taxes are provided for the 
temporary differences between the fi nancial reporting basis and 
the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities. 

Earnings per Share 
The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the 
weighted average number of shares and common stock units that 
were outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted 
earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of common stock 
equivalents consisting of certain shares subject to stock options.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 Revised, 
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities – an Interpretation 
of ARB No. 51” (“FIN 46R”), which provided, among other 
things, immediate deferral of the application of FIN 46 for 
entities that did not originally qualify as special purpose 
entities, and provided additional scope exceptions for joint 
ventures with business operations and franchises.  The 
Company’s adoption of FIN 46R did not have an impact on 
its consolidated fi nancial statements.

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 
No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104”). SAB 104 rescinds 
the accounting guidance contained in SAB 101, “Revenue 
Recognition in Financial Statements,” and incorporates the 
body of previously issued guidance related to multiple-element 
revenue arrangements. The Company’s adoption of SAB 104 
did not have an impact on its consolidated fi nancial statements.
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In March 2004, the FASB ratifi ed Emerging Issues Task 
Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-
Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain 
Investments” (“EITF 03-1”), but delayed the recognition and 
measurement provisions of EITF 03-1 in September 2004. 
For reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004, only the 
disclosure requirements for available-for-sale securities and cost 
method investments are required. The Company’s adoption of 
the requiremens in the fi scal fourth quarter of 2004 did not 
have a signifi cant impact on the Company’s disclosures.  

In July 2004, the FASB issued EITF Issue No. 02-14, 
“Whether an Investor Should Apply the Equity Method of 
Accounting to Investments Other Than Common Stock” 
(“EITF 02-14”). EITF 02-14 requires application of the 
equity method of accounting when an investor is able to exert 
signifi cant infl uence over operating and fi nancial policies of an 
investee through ownership of common stock or in-substance 
common stock. EITF 02-14 is effective for reporting periods 
beginning after September 15, 2004. The adoption of EITF 
02-14 will not have a signifi cant impact on the Company’s 
consolidated fi nancial position or results of operations.

Note 2: Acquisitions
In July 2004, Starbucks acquired 100% of its licensed operations 
in Singapore and acquired 49.9% of its licensed operations in 
Malaysia, for a combined total of approximately $12.1 million. 
Previously, the Company did not have any equity ownership 
interests in these entities. The results of operations for Singapore 
are included in the accompanying consolidated fi nancial 
statements from the date of acquisition. For its investment in 

Malaysia, management applied the equity method of accounting 
from the date of acquisition, since the Company is able to exert 
signifi cant infl uence over the investee’s operating and fi nancial 
policies. See Note 7 for additional information on equity 
method investments. Also, see Note 18 for information on the 
Company’s 100% acquisition of its licensed operations in 
Germany in fi scal 2005.

In July 2003, the Company acquired Seattle Coffee Company 
(“SCC”), which includes the Seattle’s Best Coffee® and 
Torrefazione Italia® brands, from AFC Enterprises, Inc., for 
$70 million in cash. The results of operations of SCC are 
included in the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements 
from the date of acquisition. 

During fi scal 2003, Starbucks increased its equity ownership to 
50% of its international licensed operations in Austria, Shanghai, 
Spain, Switzerland and Taiwan, which enabled the Company to 
exert signifi cant infl uence over their operating and fi nancial 
policies. For these operations, the Company refl ected a change in 
accounting method during fi scal 2003, from the cost method to 
the equity method, in the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

Note 3: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Operating funds and 
 interest bearing deposits $ 219,809 $ 187,118
Money market funds  79,319  13,789
Total $ 299,128 $ 200,907

Note 4: Short-term and Long-term Investments
The Company’s short-term and long-term investments consist of the following (in thousands):

 Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair
October 3, 2004 Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Value
Short-term investments – available-for-sale securities:
 State and local government obligations $ 309,954 $ 20 $ (583)  $ 309,391
 U.S. government agency obligations  6,655  –  (4)   6,651
 Asset-backed securities  13,020  50  (30)   13,040
Total $ 329,629         $             70        $         (617)  $ 329,082
Short-term investments – trading securities    24,769         24,799
Total short-term investments $ 354,398      $ 353,881
Long-term investments – available-for-sale securities:
 State and local government obligations $ 130,810 $ 67 $ (348)  $ 130,529
 Corporate debt securities  4,000  –  –   4,000
 Asset-backed securities  658  –  (8)   650
Total long-term investments $ 135,468 $ 67 $ (356)  $ 135,179

 Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair
September 28, 2003 Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Value
Short-term investments – available-for-sale securities:
 U.S. government agency obligations $ 3,672 $ 1 $ –  $ 3,673
 State and local government obligations  125,121  115  (4)   125,232
Total $ 128,793         $ 116 $ (4)  $ 128,905
Short-term investments – trading securities  21,268       20,199
Total short-term investments $ 150,061      $ 149,104
Long-term investments – available-for-sale securities:
 State and local government obligations $ 131,021 $ 421 $ (32)  $ 131,410
 Asset-backed securities  4,804  14  (69)   4,749
Total long-term investments $ 135,825 $ 435 $ (101)  $ 136,159

For available-for-sale securities, proceeds from sales were $190.7 million, $88.9 million and $144.8 million, in fi scal years 2004, 2003 
and 2002, respectively. Gross realized gains from the sales were $0.2 million in 2004 and $0.3 million in 2003, and gross realized losses 
from the sales were $0.4 million in 2004. There were no gross realized gains in 2002 and no gross realized losses in 2003 or 2002. 
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Short-term and long-term investments with unrealized losses as 
of October 3, 2004, consist of the following (in thousands):

 Gross Unrealized Fair
Less than 12 months:  Losses Value
State and local government obligations $ (931) $ 376,318
U.S. government agency obligations  (4)  6,651
Asset-backed securities  (38)  7,097
Total $ (973) $ 390,066

The $1.0 million of gross unrealized losses as of October 3, 2004, 
which pertains to 184 securities, was generated within the past 
12 months and was primarily caused by changes in interest rates. 
There were no realized losses generated from other-than-temporary 
impairment for these securities during 2004, 2003 or 2002. 

Trading securities are comprised mainly of marketable equity 
mutual funds that approximate a portion of the Company’s 
liability under the Management Deferred Compensation 
Plan, a defi ned contribution plan. The corresponding deferred 
compensation liability of $32.7 million in fi scal 2004 and $20.4 
million in fi scal 2003 is included in “Accrued compensation and 
related costs” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
In fi scal years 2004 and 2003, the changes in net unrealized 
holding gains in the trading portfolio included in earnings were 
$1.1 million and $1.8 million, respectively. 

Long-term investments generally mature in less than three years.

Note 5: Derivative Financial Instruments

Cash Flow Hedges
Starbucks and its subsidiaries, which include entities that use their 
local currency as their functional currency, enter into cash fl ow 
derivative instruments to hedge portions of anticipated revenue 
streams and purchases. Current contracts hedge forecasted 
transactions denominated in Japanese yen and Canadian dollars, 
as well as in U.S. dollars for foreign operations. During fi scal years 
2004, 2003 and 2002, derivative gains (losses) of ($1.5) million, 
($1.7) million, and $2.9 million were reclassifi ed to revenues, 
respectively. For hedges of foreign-denominated purchases, 
derivative losses of $0.8 million were reclassifi ed into cost of sales 
during fi scal 2004. There were no similar transactions reclassifi ed 
into cost of sales in prior years. 

The Company had accumulated net derivative losses of $3.9 
million, net of taxes, in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) 
as of October 3, 2004, related to cash fl ow hedges. Of this 
amount, $2.5 million of net derivative losses will be reclassifi ed 
into earnings within 12 months. No signifi cant cash fl ow hedges 
were discontinued during fi scal years 2004, 2003 or 2002. 
Current contracts will expire within 24 months.

Net Investment Hedges
Net investment derivative instruments hedge the Company’s 
equity method investment in Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. 
These forward foreign exchange contracts expire within 31 
months and are intended to minimize foreign currency exposure 
to fl uctuations in the Japanese yen. As a result of using the spot-
to-spot method, the Company recognized net gains of $0.7 
million, $1.4 million and $1.8 million during fi scal years 2004, 
2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition, the Company had 
accumulated net derivative losses of $4.3 million, net of taxes, 
in OCI as of October 3, 2004.

Note 6: Inventories 
Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Coffee:
 Unroasted $ 233,903 $ 167,674
 Roasted  46,070  41,475
Other merchandise held for sale  81,565  83,784
Packaging and other supplies  61,125  50,011

Total $ 422,663 $ 342,944

As of October 3, 2004, the Company had committed to fi xed-
price purchase contracts for green coffee totaling $271.7 million. 
The Company believes, based on relationships established with 
its suppliers in the past, the risk of nondelivery on such purchase 
commitments is low.

Note 7: Equity and Other Investments
The Company’s equity and other investments consist of the 
following (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Equity method investments $ 152,511 $ 134,341
Cost method investments  16,430  7,210
Other investments  2,806  2,706
Total $ 171,747 $ 144,257

Equity Method
The Company’s equity investees and ownership interests are 
as follows:

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
The North American Coffee Partnership 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Ice Cream Partnership 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Coffee Korea Co., Ltd. 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Coffee Austria GmbH 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Coffee Switzerland AG 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Coffee España, S.L. 50.0% 50.0%
President Starbucks Coffee Taiwan Ltd. 50.0% 50.0%
Shanghai President Coffee Co. 50.0% 50.0%
Starbucks Coffee France SAS 50.0% 50.0%
Berjaya Starbucks Coffee Company Sdn. Bhd. 49.9% –
Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. 40.1% 40.1%
Coffee Partners Hawaii 5.0% 5.0%

The Company has licensed the rights to produce and distribute 
Starbucks branded products to two partnerships in which the 
Company holds a 50% equity interest. The North American 
Coffee Partnership with the Pepsi-Cola Company develops and 
distributes bottled Frappuccino® and Starbucks DoubleShot® 
coffee drinks. The Starbucks Ice Cream Partnership with Dreyer’s 
Grand Ice Cream, Inc., develops and distributes superpremium 
ice creams. The remaining entities operate licensed Starbucks 
retail stores, including Coffee Partners Hawaii, which is a 
general partnership.

During fi scal 2004, Starbucks acquired an equity interest in its 
licensed operations of Malaysia. During fi scal 2003, Starbucks 
increased its ownership of its licensed operations in Austria, 
Shanghai, Spain, Switzerland and Taiwan. The carrying 
amount of these investments was $24.3 million more than the 
underlying equity in net assets due to acquired goodwill, which 
is not subject to amortization in accordance with SFAS 142. 
The goodwill is evaluated for impairment in accordance with 
APB Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for 
Investments in Common Stock.”  No impairment was recorded 
during fi scal years 2004 or 2003. For additional information on 
acquisitions, see Note 2.

The Company’s share of income and losses is included in 
“Income from equity investees” on the accompanying 
consolidated statements of earnings. Also included is the 
Company’s proportionate share of gross margin resulting from 
coffee and other product sales to, and royalty and license fee 
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revenues generated from, equity investees. Revenues generated 
from these related parties, net of eliminations, were $75.2 
million, $68.0 million and $67.7 million in fi scal years 2004, 
2003 and 2002, respectively. Related costs of sales, net of 
eliminations, were $37.5 million, $35.7 million and $37.9 
million in fi scal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.  

As of October 3, 2004, the aggregate market value of the 
Company’s investment in Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd., was 
approximately $149.9 million based on its available quoted 
market price.

Cost Method
The Company has equity interests in entities to develop 
Starbucks licensed retail stores in certain Chinese markets and 
in Puerto Rico, Germany, Mexico, Chile, Cyprus and Greece. 
As of October 3, 2004, management determined that the 
estimated fair value of each cost method investment exceeded its 
carrying value as part of the formal adoption of the impairment 
provisions of EITF 03-1. 

Starbucks has the ability to acquire additional interests in some 
of its cost method investees at certain intervals. Depending 
on the Company’s total percentage of ownership interest and 
its ability to exercise signifi cant infl uence over fi nancial and 
operating policies, additional investments may require the 
retroactive application of the equity method of accounting. 

Other Investments
Starbucks has investments in privately held equity securities that 
are recorded at their estimated fair values.

Note 8: Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and consist 
of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Land $ 13,118 $ 11,414
Buildings  66,468  64,427
Leasehold improvements  1,497,941  1,311,024
Roasting and store equipment  683,747  613,825
Furniture, fixtures and other  415,307  375,854
  2,676,581  2,376,544
Less accumulated depreciation 
  and amortization   (1,298,270)      (1,049,810)
  1,378,311  1,326,734
Work in progress  93,135  58,168
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,471,446 $ 1,384,902

Note 9: Other Intangible Assets and Goodwill
As of October 3, 2004, indefi nite-lived intangibles were $24.3 
million and defi nite-lived intangibles, which collectively had a 
remaining weighted average useful life of approximately eight 
years, were $2.5 million, net of accumulated amortization 
of $1.3 million. As of September 28, 2003, indefi nite-lived 
intangibles were $23.3 million and defi nite-lived intangibles 
were $1.6 million, net of accumulated amortization of $0.9 
million. Amortization expense for defi nite-lived intangibles 
was $0.5 million and $0.4 million during fi scal 2004 and 
2003, respectively. 

The following table summarizes the estimated amortization 
expense for each of the next fi ve fi scal years (in thousands):

Fiscal year ending
2005   $ 536
2006    606
2007    647
2008    782
2009    908
Total    3,479

During fi scal 2004 and 2003, goodwill increased by 
approximately $6.1 million for the acquisition of licensed 
operations in Singapore and $43.3 million for the acquisition of 
the Seattle Coffee Company, respectively. No impairment was 
recorded during fi scal 2004 or 2003.

The following table summarizes goodwill by operating segment 
(in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
United States $ 60,540 $ 60,965
International  8,410  2,379
Total $ 68,950 $ 63,344

The reduction in goodwill assigned to the United States 
operating segment during fi scal 2004 refl ects a net decrease for 
Seattle Coffee Company, primarily from adjustments to values 
estimated in the initial purchase price allocation. The increase 
in goodwill assigned to the International operating segment 
during fi scal 2004 relates to the acquisition of licensed 
operations in Singapore, partially offset by fl uctuations in 
foreign exchange rates.

Note 10: Long-term Debt
In September 1999, Starbucks purchased the land and building 
comprising its York County, Pennsylvania, roasting plant and 
distribution facility. The total purchase price was $12.9 million. 
In connection with this purchase, the Company assumed 
loans totaling $7.7 million from the York County Industrial 
Development Corporation. The remaining maturities of these 
loans range from fi ve to six years, with interest rates from 0.0% 
to 2.0%. 

Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt are as follows 
(in thousands):

Fiscal year ending
2005 $ 735
2006  748
2007  762
2008  775
2009  790
Thereafter  543
Total principal payments $ 4,353

Note 11: Leases
The Company leases retail stores, roasting and distribution 
facilities and offi ce space under operating leases expiring 
through 2027. Most lease agreements contain renewal options 
and rent escalation clauses. Certain leases provide for contingent 
rentals based upon gross sales.

Rental expense under these lease agreements was as follows 
(in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Minimum rentals – 
 retail stores $ 283,351 $ 237,742 $ 200,827
Minimum rentals – other  28,064  22,887  19,143
Contingent rentals  24,638  12,274  5,415
Total $ 336,053 $ 272,903 $ 225,385

Minimum future rental payments under noncancelable lease 
obligations as of October 3, 2004, are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal year ending 
2005   $ 355,079
2006    340,360
2007    321,047
2008    299,601
2009    272,806
Thereafter    1,020,143
Total minimum lease payments   $ 2,609,036
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Note 12: Shareholders’ Equity
In addition to 600.0 million shares of authorized common stock 
with $0.001 par value per share, the Company has authorized 
7.5 million shares of preferred stock, none of which was 
outstanding at October 3, 2004.

During fi scal 2004, the Starbucks Board of Directors authorized 
an additional program for the repurchase of up to 9.0 million 
shares of the Company’s common stock and also authorized 
management to repurchase shares under any of the Company’s 
programs pursuant to a contract, instruction or written plan 
meeting the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. 

Pursuant to the Company’s authorized share repurchase 
programs, Starbucks acquired 5.0 million shares at an average 
price of $40.85 for a total cost of $203.4 million in fi scal 2004.  
Starbucks acquired 3.3 million shares at an average price of 
$22.95 for a total cost of $75.7 million during fi scal 2003. 

As of October 3, 2004, there were approximately 18.6 million 
remaining shares authorized for repurchase. Share repurchases 
were funded through cash, cash equivalents and available-for-
sale securities and were primarily intended to help offset dilution 
from stock-based compensation and employee stock purchase plans. 

Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during 
the period, except those resulting from transactions with 
shareholders and subsidiaries of the Company. It has two 
components: net earnings and other comprehensive income. 
Accumulated other comprehensive income reported on the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheets consists of foreign 
currency translation adjustments and the unrealized gains and 
losses, net of applicable taxes, on available-for-sale securities 
and on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as cash 
fl ow and net investment hedges. Comprehensive income, net of 
related tax effects, is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Net earnings $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686
 Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on available-for-sale securities,
  net of tax benefit/(provision) of $618, ($53) and ($231) in 2004,
  2003 and 2002, respectively  (1,005)  ,142  ,394
 Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges, net of tax 
  benefit/(provision) of $2,801, $804 and ($1,066) in 2004, 2003
  and 2002, respectively  (4,769)  (1,369)  1,815
 Unrealized holding losses on net investment hedges, net 
  of tax benefit of $328, $1,903 and $415 in 2004, 2003 and
  2002, respectively  ,(558)  (3,241)  ,(706)
 Reclassification adjustment for (gains)/losses realized in net income, 
  net of tax benefit/(provision) of ($832), ($41) and $1,769 in 2004, 
  2003 and 2002, respectively  1,407  ,  42  (3,012)
Net unrealized loss  (4,925)  (4,426)  (1,509)
Translation adjustment  19,896  27,255  (1,664)
Total comprehensive income $ 406,746 $ 291,175 $ 209,513

The favorable translation adjustment changes during fi scal years 2004 and 2003 of $19.9 million and $27.3 million, respectively, 
were primarily due to the weakening of the U.S. dollar against several currencies, such as the British pound sterling, Euro, Canadian 
dollar and Japanese yen. The unfavorable translation adjustment change of ($1.7) million in fi scal 2002 was primarily due to the 
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Japanese yen. 

Note 13: Employee Stock and Benefi t Plans

Stock Option Plans
The Company maintains several stock option plans under which it may grant incentive stock options and nonqualifi ed stock options 
to employees, consultants and nonemployee directors. Stock options have been granted at prices at or above the fair market value on 
the date of grant. Options vest and expire according to terms established at the grant date. 

The following summarizes all stock option transactions from September 30, 2001, through October 3, 2004:

  Weighted  Weighted
  Average Shares Average
 Shares Exercise Subject to Exercise
 Subject to Price Exercisable Price
 Options per Share Options per Share

Outstanding, September 30, 2001 43,010,931  $ 12.13 24,407,135 $ 9.16
 Granted 10,262,709   15.79
 Exercised (9,830,136 )  9.29
 Cancelled (2,983,701 )  15.15
Outstanding, September 29, 2002 40,459,803   13.55 20,975,598  11.07
 Granted 9,537,730   21.10
 Exercised (8,019,604 )  11.69
 Cancelled (2,912,483 )  17.90
Outstanding, September 28, 2003 39,065,446   15.47 20,888,694  12.55
 Granted 9,217,620   31.23
 Exercised (7,708,491 )  14.21
 Cancelled (2,157,965 )  23.75
Outstanding, October 3, 2004 38,416,610 $ 19.05 26,689,115 $ 15.85
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As of October 3, 2004, there were 21.1 million shares of common stock available for issuance pursuant to future stock option grants. 
Additional information regarding options outstanding as of October 3, 2004, is as follows: 

    Options Outstanding   Options Exercisable

    Weighted
    Average Weighted  Weighted
    Remaining Average  Average
 Range of   Contractual Exercise  Exercise
 Exercise Prices  Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price
 $ 4.14 – $ 9.20  6,115,368 2.33 $ 8.16 6,115,368 $ 8.16
  9.21 –  14.80  9,934,624 5.66  12.99 9,062,892  12.81
  15.51 –  20.19  5,046,033 6.17  19.77 4,600,521  19.88
  20.25 –  30.25  9,072,745 7.84  21.46 4,866,404  21.24
  30.46 –  46.02  8,247,840 9.17  31.32 2,043,930  30.46
 $ 4.14 – $ 46.02  38,416,610 6.47 $ 19.05 26,689,115 $ 15.85

Employee Stock Purchase Plans
The Company has an employee stock purchase plan which 
provides that eligible employees may contribute up to 10% 
of their base earnings toward the quarterly purchase of the 
Company’s common stock. The employee’s purchase price 
is 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on 
the fi rst business day or the last business day of the quarterly 
offering period. Employees may purchase shares having a fair 
market value of up to $25,000 (measured as of the fi rst day 
of each quarterly offering period for each calendar year). No 
compensation expense is recorded in connection with the plan. 
The total number of shares issuable under the plan is 16.0 
million. There were 979,592 shares issued under the plan during 
fi scal 2004 at prices ranging from $21.53 to $37.93. There were 
712,046 shares issued under the plan during fi scal 2003 at prices 
ranging from $17.32 to $20.87. There were 991,742 shares issued 
under the plan during fi scal 2002 at prices ranging from $12.58 
to $19.81. Since inception of the plan, 6.6 million shares have 
been purchased, leaving 9.4 million shares available for future 
issuance. Of the 54,623 employees eligible to participate, 14,253 
were participants in the plan as of October 3, 2004. 

Starbucks has an additional employee stock purchase plan that 
allows eligible U.K. employees to save toward the purchase of 
the Company’s common stock. The employee’s purchase price 
is 85% of the fair value of the stock on the fi rst business day of 
a three-year offering period. No compensation expense was 
recorded in connection with the plan during fi scal years 2004, 
2003 or 2002. The total number of shares issuable under the 
plan is 600,000. There were 4,480 shares issued under the plan 
during fi scal 2004 at prices ranging from $14.13 to $18.95. 
There were 31,294 shares issued under the plan during fi scal 
2003 at prices ranging from $11.33 to $12.02. No shares had 
been issued prior to fi scal 2003 and 564,226 shares remain 
available for future issuance. During fi scal 2004, the Company 
suspended future offerings under this employee stock purchase 

plan, with the last offering made in December 2002 and 
maturing in February 2006. A new employee stock purchase 
plan, the UK Share Incentive Plan, was introduced during 
fi scal 2004 and will allow eligible U.K. employees to purchase 
shares of common stock through payroll deductions during 
six-month offering periods, at the lesser of the fair market 
value of the stock at the beginning or end of the offering 
period. The Company will award one matching share for each 
six shares purchased under the plan. The total number of 
shares issuable under the plan is 700,000, of which no shares 
were issued as of October 3, 2004.

Deferred Stock Plan
Starbucks has a deferred stock plan for certain key employees that 
enables participants in the plan to defer receipt of ownership of 
common shares from the exercise of nonqualifi ed stock options. 
The minimum deferral period is fi ve years. As of October 3, 
2004, receipt of 1,697,100 shares was deferred under the terms 
of this plan. The rights to receive these shares, represented by 
common stock units, are included in the calculation of basic and 
diluted earnings per share as common stock equivalents. 

Defi ned Contribution Plans
Starbucks maintains voluntary defi ned contribution plans 
covering eligible employees as defi ned in the plan documents. 
Participating employees may elect to defer and contribute a 
portion of their compensation to the plans up to limits stated 
in the plan documents, not to exceed the dollar amounts set by 
applicable laws. For employees in the United States and Canada, 
the Company matched 25% to 150% of each employee’s eligible 
contribution based on years of service, up to a maximum of the 
fi rst 4% of each employee’s compensation.

The Company’s matching contributions to all plans were 
approximately $9.8 million, $6.8 million and $3.1 million in 
fi scal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Note 14: Income Taxes 
A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with the Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Statutory rate  35.0 %  35.0 %  35.0 %
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit  3.5   3.6   3.4 
Valuation allowance change/Other, net   (1.3)  (0.1)  (1.1)
Effective tax rate  37.2 %  38.5 %  37.3 %

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Currently payable:         
 Federal $ 188,647  $ 140,138  $ 109,154 
 State  36,383   25,448   16,820 
 Foreign  10,218   8,523   5,807 
Deferred taxes, net    (2,766)   (6,120)   (5,468) 
Total $ 232,482  $ 167,989  $ 126,313 

U.S. income and foreign withholding taxes have not been 
provided on approximately $42.8 million of cumulative 
nondistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and equity 
investees. The Company intends to reinvest these earnings 
for the foreseeable future. If these amounts were distributed to 
the United States, in the form of dividends or otherwise, the 
Company would be subject to additional U.S. income taxes. 
Because of the availability of U.S. foreign tax credits, the 
determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred income 
tax liabilities on these earnings is not practicable.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact on its 
consolidated fi nancial position and disclosures from new U.S. tax 
legislation, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“American 
Jobs Creation Act”), signed into law on October 22, 2004. The 
new law allows a deduction of 85% of repatriated qualifi ed 
foreign earnings in either fi scal year 2005 or fi scal year 2006. 
Any impact from this legislation has not been refl ected in the 
amounts shown as reinvested for the foreseeable future.

The tax effect of temporary differences and carryforwards that 
comprise signifi cant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities 
is as follows (in thousands): 

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Deferred tax assets:
 Equity and other investments $ 10,766 $ 17,576
 Capital loss carryforwards  4,223  4,578
 Accrued occupancy costs  19,683  15,706
 Accrued compensation and related costs  31,057  20,533
 Other accrued expenses  21,194  22,410
 Foreign tax credits  17,514  14,103
 Other  9,185  7,084
 Total  113,622  101,990
 Valuation allowance  (8,334 )  (13,685 )
Total deferred tax asset, net of 
 valuation allowance  105,288  88,305
Deferred tax liabilities:
 Property, plant and equipment  (58,512 )  (49,419 )
 Other  (12,219 )  (10,650 )
 Total  (70,731 )  (60,069 )
Net deferred tax asset $ 34,557 $ 28,236

The Company will establish a valuation allowance if it is 
more likely than not that these items will either expire before 
the Company is able to realize their benefi ts, or that future 
deductibility is uncertain. Periodically, the valuation allowance 
is reviewed and adjusted based on management’s assessments 
of realizable deferred tax assets. The valuation allowances as of 
October 3, 2004, and September 28, 2003, were related 
to nondeductible losses from investments in foreign equity 
investees and wholly owned foreign subsidiaries. The net change 
in the total valuation allowance for the years ended October 3, 
2004, and September 28, 2003, was a decrease of $5.4 million 
and an increase of $7.0 million, respectively.

As of October 3, 2004, the Company has foreign tax credit 
carryforwards of $17.5 million with expiration dates between 
fi scal years 2005 and 2009. Effective in fi scal 2005, the 
American Job Creation Act extends the carryforward periods 
by an additional fi ve years, to fi scal years 2010 and 2014. As 
of the end of fi scal 2004, the Company also has capital loss 
carryforwards of $11.1 million, expiring in 2006. 

Taxes currently payable of $29.3 million and $30.5 million 
are included in “Accrued taxes” on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets as of October 3, 2004, and 
September 28, 2003, respectively.

Note 15: Earnings per Share 
The following table represents the calculation of net earnings per 
common share – basic (in thousands, except earnings per share):

 Oct 3,  Sept 28,  Sept 29,
Fiscal year ended 2004 2003 2002
Net earnings $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686
Weighted average common 
 shares and common stock
 units outstanding  397,173  390,753  385,575
Net earnings per common 
 share – basic $ 0.99 $ 0.69 $ 0.55

The following table represents the calculation of net earnings per 
common and common equivalent share – diluted (in thousands, 
except earnings per share): 

 Oct 3,  Sept 28,  Sept 29,
Fiscal year ended 2004 2003 2002
Net earnings $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686
 Weighted average common
  shares and common stock
  units outstanding  397,173  390,753  385,575
 Dilutive effect of outstanding 
  common stock options  14,292  10,895  11,951
Weighted average common 
 and common equivalent 
 shares outstanding  411,465  401,648  397,526
Net earnings per common 
 share – diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.67 $ 0.54

Options with exercise prices greater than the average market 
price were not included in the computation of diluted earnings 
per share. These options totaled 0.2 million, 0.6 million and 1.8 
million in fi scal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Note 16: Related Party Transactions
In April 2001, three members of the Board of Directors and 
other investors, organized as The Basketball Club of Seattle, 
LLC (the “Basketball Club”), purchased the franchises for The 
Seattle Supersonics and The Seattle Storm basketball teams. An 
executive offi cer of the Company and member of the Board of 
Directors, Howard Schultz, owns a controlling interest in the 
Basketball Club. Starbucks paid approximately $0.8 million, 
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$0.7 million and $0.7 million during fi scal years 2004, 2003 and 
2002, respectively, for team sponsorships and ticket purchases. 
Terms of the team sponsorship agreements did not change as a 
result of the related party relationship. 

Prior to January 2003, a former member of the Company’s Board 
of Directors served as a board member of, and owned an indirect 
interest in, a privately held company that provides Starbucks 
with in-store music services. Starbucks paid $0.7 million and 
$3.0 million to the privately held company for music services 
during fi scal years 2003 and 2002, respectively, while the related 
party relationship existed. 

Note 17: Commitments and Contingencies
The Company has unconditionally guaranteed the repayment 
of certain Japanese yen–denominated bank loans and related 
interest and fees of an unconsolidated equity investee, 
Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. The guarantees continue until 
the loans, including accrued interest and fees, have been 
paid in full. The maximum amount is limited to the sum of 
unpaid principal and interest amounts, as well as other related 
expenses. These amounts will vary based on fl uctuations in 
the yen foreign exchange rate. As of October 3, 2004, the 
maximum amount of the guarantees was approximately 
$10.6 million. Since there has been no modifi cation of these 
loan guarantees subsequent to the Company’s adoption of 
FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting 
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including 
Indebtedness of Others,” Starbucks has applied the disclosure 
provisions only and has not recorded the guarantee in its 
statement of fi nancial position.

Coffee brewing and espresso equipment sold to customers 
through Company-operated and licensed retail stores, as well 

as equipment sold to the Company’s licensees for use in retail 
licensing operations, are under warranty for defects in materials 
and workmanship for a period ranging from 12 to 24 months. 
The Company establishes an accrual for estimated warranty 
costs at the time of sale, based on historical experience. 

The following table summarizes the activity related to 
product warranty reserves during fi scal years 2004 and 2003 
(in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003
Balance at beginning of fiscal year  $ 2,227 $ 1,842
Provision for warranties issued    5,093  2,895
Warranty claims    (4,229 )  (2,510 )
Balance at end of fiscal year   $ 3,091 $ 2,227

The Company is party to various legal proceedings arising in 
the ordinary course of its business, but it is not currently a party 
to any legal proceeding that management believes would have a 
material adverse effect on the consolidated fi nancial position or 
results of operations of the Company.

Note 18: Subsequent Event
In November 2004, Starbucks increased its equity ownership 
from 18% to 100% for its licensed operations in Germany. For 
these operations, management determined that a change in 
accounting method, from the cost method to the consolidation 
method, will be required. This accounting change will include 
adjusting previously reported information for the Company’s 
proportionate share of net losses of 18% as required by 
APB Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for 
Investments in Common Stock,” in the Company’s fi scal fi rst 
quarter of 2005. 

As shown in the table below, the cumulative effect of the accounting change for fi nancial results previously reported under the cost 
method will result in reductions of net earnings of $1.3 million, $1.4 million and $0.9 million for the fi scal years ended October 3, 
2004, September 28, 2003, and September 29, 2002, respectively (in thousands, except earnings per share):

 Oct 3, Sept 28, Sept 29, 
Fiscal year ended 2004 2003 2002
Net earnings, previously reported $ 391,775 $ 268,346 $ 212,686
Effect of change to equity method  (1,287 )  (1,355 )  (928 )
Net earnings, as restated $ 390,488  $ 266,991  $ 211,758

Net earnings per common share – basic:
  Previously reported $ 0.99  $ 0.69  $ 0.55
  As restated $ 0.98  $ 0.68  $ 0.55

Net earnings per common share – diluted: 
  Previously reported $ 0.95  $ 0.67  $ 0.54
  As restated $ 0.95  $ 0.66  $ 0.53

The following table summarizes the effects of the investment accounting change on net earnings and earnings per share for the 
periods indicated (in thousands, except earnings per share):

 Dec 28, 2003 Mar 28, 2004 Jun 27, 2004 Oct 3, 2004
Fiscal period ended (13 Wks Ended) (13 Wks Ended) (13 Wks Ended) (14 Wks Ended)

Net earnings, previously reported $ 110,811 $ 79,488 $ 98,104 $ 103,372
Effect of change to equity method  (368)  (337)  (296)  (286)
Net earnings, as restated $ 110,443 $ 79,151 $ 97,808 $ 103,086

Net earnings per common share – basic:
  Previously reported $ 0.28 $ 0.20 $ 0.25 $ 0.26
  As restated $ 0.28 $ 0.20 $ 0.25 $ 0.26

Net earnings per common share – diluted: 
  Previously reported $ 0.27 $ 0.19 $ 0.24 $ 0.25
  As restated $ 0.27 $ 0.19 $ 0.24 $ 0.25
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The table below presents information by operating segment (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended United States (1) International (1) Unallocated Corporate (2) Total

Fiscal 2004:
Total net revenues $ 4,490,850 $ 803,397 $ – $ 5,294,247
Earnings/(loss) before income taxes   765,153  53,368  (194,264 )  624,257
Depreciation and amortization  201,703  45,783  32,538  280,024
Income from equity investees  37,453  23,204  –  60,657
Equity method investments  14,367  138,144  –  152,511
Identifiable assets  1,273,807  474,832  1,570,318  3,318,957
Fiscal 2003:
Total net revenues $ 3,472,452 $ 603,070 $ – $ 4,075,522
Earnings/(loss) before income taxes  606,544  5,466  (175,675 )  436,335
Depreciation and amortization  167,138  38,563  32,106  237,807
Income from equity investees  28,484  9,912  –  38,396
Equity method investments  16,919  117,422  –  134,341
Identifiable assets  1,161,512  383,324  1,184,910  2,729,746
Fiscal 2002:
Total net revenues $ 2,828,253 $ 460,655 $ – $ 3,288,908
Earnings/(loss) before income taxes  506,829  3,891  (171,721 )  338,999
Depreciation and amortization  142,752  34,069  28,736  205,557
Income from equity investees  19,182  14,263  –  33,445
Equity method investments  18,519  76,101  –  94,620
Identifiable assets  957,127  332,411  924,854  2,214,392

(1) For purposes of internal management and segment reporting, licensed operations in Hawaii and Puerto Rico are included in the International segment.
(2) Unallocated corporate includes certain general and administrative expenses, related depreciation and amortization expenses and amounts included in 

“Interest and other income, net” and “Gain on sale of investment” on the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings.

The tables below represent information by geographic area (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Net revenues from external customers:
 United States $ 4,501,287 $ 3,480,164 $ 2,830,650
 Foreign countries  792,960  595,358  458,258

Total $ 5,294,247 $ 4,075,522 $ 3,288,908

Revenues from foreign countries are based on the geographic location of the customers and consist primarily of revenues from the 
United Kingdom and Canada, which together account for approximately 81% of foreign net revenues. No customer accounts for 10% 
or more of the Company’s revenues. 

Fiscal year ended Oct 3, 2004 Sept 28, 2003 Sept 29, 2002
Long-lived assets:
 United States $ 1,663,856 $ 1,544,300 $ 1,202,652
 Foreign countries  295,827  261,417  239,097

Total $ 1,959,683 $ 1,805,717 $ 1,441,749

Assets attributed to foreign countries are based on the country in which those assets are located.

Note 19: Segment Reporting
Segment information is prepared on the same basis that the 
Company’s management reviews fi nancial information for 
operational decision making purposes. Starbucks segment 
reporting is based on two distinct, geographically defi ned 
operating segments: United States and International. 

United States
The Company’s United States operations (“United States”) 
represent 85% of total retail revenues, 83% of specialty 
revenues and 85% of total net revenues. Company-operated 
retail stores sell coffee and other beverages, whole bean 
coffees, complementary food, coffee brewing equipment and 
merchandise. Nonretail activities within the United States 
include: licensed operations, foodservice accounts and other 
initiatives related to the Company’s core businesses.

International 
The Company’s International operations (“International”) 
represent the remaining 15% of retail revenues, 17% of specialty 
revenues and 15% of total net revenues. International sells coffee 
and other beverages, whole bean coffees, complementary food, 

coffee brewing equipment and merchandise through Company-
operated retail stores in Canada, the United Kingdom, 
Thailand, Australia and Singapore, as well as through retail 
store licensing operations and foodservice accounts in these and 
more than 20 other countries. International operations are in 
various early stages of development and have country-specifi c 
regulatory requirements that necessitate a more extensive 
support organization, relative to the current levels of revenue 
and operating income, than in the United States.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same 
as those described in the summary of signifi cant accounting 
policies in Note 1. Operating income represents earnings 
before “Interest and other income, net,” “Gain on sale of 
investment” and “Income taxes.” No allocations of corporate 
overhead, interest or income taxes are made to the segments. 
Identifi able assets by segment are those assets used in the 
Company’s operations in each segment. Unallocated corporate 
assets include cash and investments, unallocated assets of the 
corporate headquarters and roasting facilities, deferred taxes and 
certain other intangibles. Management evaluates performance of 
segments based on net revenues and operating expenses.
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Note 20: Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)
Summarized quarterly fi nancial information in fi scal 2004 and 2003 is as follows (in thousands, except earnings per share):

 First Second Third Fourth
2004 quarter:
  Net revenues $ 1,281,191 $ 1,241,068 $ 1,318,691 $ 1,453,297
  Operating income  175,520  124,521  153,807  156,269
  Net earnings  110,811  79,488  98,104  103,372
  Net earnings per common share – diluted $ 0.27 $ 0.19 $ 0.24 $ 0.25

2003 quarter:
  Net revenues $ 1,003,526 $ 954,206 $ 1,036,776 $ 1,081,014
  Operating income  120,834  85,494  106,019  112,366
  Net earnings  78,363  52,031  68,356  69,596
  Net earnings per common share – diluted $ 0.20 $ 0.13 $ 0.17 $ 0.17

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
The management of Starbucks Corporation is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the fi nancial statements included in 
this Annual Report to Shareholders. The fi nancial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and include amounts based on management’s best estimates and judgments where necessary. 
Financial information included elsewhere in this Annual Report is consistent with these fi nancial statements. 

Management maintains a system of internal controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
executed in accordance with proper authorization, transactions are properly recorded in the Company’s records, assets are safeguarded, 
and accountability for assets is maintained. Internal controls and procedures are periodically reviewed and revised, when appropriate, 
due to changing circumstances and requirements. In addition, the Company’s internal audit department assesses the effectiveness and 
adequacy of internal controls on a regular basis and recommends improvements when appropriate. Management considers the internal 
auditors’ and independent auditors’ recommendations concerning the Company’s internal controls and takes steps to implement those 
that are believed to be appropriate in the circumstances. 

Independent auditors are appointed by the Company’s Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors and ratifi ed by 
the Company’s shareholders to audit the fi nancial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and to independently assess the fair presentation of the Company’s fi nancial position, results of operations and cash 
fl ows. Their report appears in this Annual Report. 

The Audit and Compliance Committee, all of whose members are independent directors, is responsible for monitoring the Company’s 
accounting and reporting practices. The Audit and Compliance Committee meets periodically with management, the independent 
auditors and the internal auditors, jointly and separately, to review fi nancial reporting matters as well as to ensure that each group is 
properly discharging its responsibilities. The independent auditors and the internal auditors have full and free access to the Committee 
without the presence of management to discuss the results of their audits, the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality 
of fi nancial reporting. 

ORIN C. SMITH MICHAEL CASEY
president and executive vice president, 
chief executive offi cer chief fi nancial offi cer and chief administrative offi cer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Starbucks Corporation
Seattle, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Starbucks Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of 
October 3, 2004, and September 28, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity and cash fl ows 
for the years ended October 3, 2004, September 28, 2003, and September 29, 2002. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of the Company as 
of October 3, 2004, and September 28, 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash fl ows for the years ended October 3, 2004, 
September 28, 2003, and September 29, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Seattle, Washington
December 7, 2004
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Market Information and Dividend Policy
The Company’s common stock is traded on the National 
Market tier of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (“Nasdaq”), 
under the symbol “SBUX.” The following table sets forth the 
quarterly high and low closing sale prices per share of the 
common stock as reported by Nasdaq for each quarter during 
the last two fi scal years. 

 HIGH LOW
October 3, 2004:
 Fourth Quarter $ 47.88 $ 42.57
 Third Quarter  44.18  37.23
 Second Quarter  38.95  32.30
 First Quarter  33.00  28.80
September 28, 2003:
 Fourth Quarter $ 30.19 $ 24.55
 Third Quarter  26.74  22.91
 Second Quarter  26.28  19.80
 First Quarter  23.93  20.36

As of December 2, 2004, the Company had 13,095 
shareholders of record. Starbucks has never paid any dividends 
on its common stock. The Company presently intends to 
retain earnings for use in its business and, therefore, does not 
anticipate paying a cash dividend in the near future. 

The Company’s Securities and Exchange Commission fi lings, 
including the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fi scal year 
ended October 3, 2004, may be obtained without charge by 
accessing the Investor Relations section of the Company’s website 
at www.starbucks.com/aboutus/investor.asp, at www.sec.gov or 
by making a request to Investor Relations via the address, phone 
number or website listed below. 

Quarterly information, as well as other current and historical 
information about the Company is available immediately upon 
its release, free of charge, by accessing the Investor Relations 
section of the Company’s website at www.starbucks.com/
aboutus/investor.asp, at www.sec.gov or by making a request 
to Investor Relations via the address, phone number or website 
listed below.

Investor Relations
Investor Relations – M/S S-FP1
Starbucks Corporation
PO Box 34067
Seattle, WA 98124-1067
(206) 447-1575, ext. 87118
www.starbucks.com/aboutus/investor.asp

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Starbucks demonstrates its commitment to corporate social 
responsibility (“CSR”) by conducting its business in ways that 
produce social, environmental and economic benefi ts to the 
communities where Starbucks operates. The Company aligns its 
principles for social responsibility with its overall strategy and 
business operations. As a result, Starbucks believes it delivers 
benefi ts to the Company and its stakeholders – partners, 
customers, suppliers, shareholders, community members and 
others – while distinguishing Starbucks as a leader within the 
coffee industry. 

Providing open communication and transparency helps the 
Company be accountable to its stakeholders. To support this 
goal, Starbucks publishes a CSR Annual Report. Starbucks 
fi scal 2004 CSR Annual Report will be available online at 
www.starbucks.com/csr beginning February 9, 2005. To 
request a printed copy of the report, which will be available in 
late March 2005, please call 1-800-23-LATTE (1-800-235-
2883) or email your request to info@starbucks.com.
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